Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey
Chief Operating Officer
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
West Lancashire
L39 2DF

1 June 2020
TO: COUNCILLORS

I MORAN,
Y GAGEN,
D EVANS,
K WRIGHT AND A YATES

J WILKIE,

K WILKIE,

Dear Councillor,
A meeting of the CABINET will be held on SKYPE on TUESDAY, 9 JUNE 2020 at 7.00
PM at which your attendance is requested.
Yours faithfully

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey
Chief Operating Officer
AGENDA
(Open to the Public)
1.

APOLOGIES

2.

SPECIAL URGENCY (RULE 16 ACCESS TO INFORMATION
PROCEDURE RULES)/URGENT BUSINESS
If, by virtue of the date by which a decision must be taken, it has not
been possible to follow Rule 15 (i.e. a matter which is likely to be the
subject of a key decision has not been included on the Forward Plan)
then the decision may still be taken if:
a) The Chief Operating Officer, on behalf of the Leader, obtains the
agreement of the Chairman of the Executive Overview and
Scrutiny Committee that the making of the decision cannot be
reasonably deferred,
b) The Chief Operating Officer, on behalf of the Leader, makes

available on the Council’s website and at the offices of the
Council, a notice setting out the reasons that the decision is
urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred.
3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

1327 - 1328

If a member requires advice on Declarations of Interest, he/she is
advised to contact the Legal & Democratic Services Manager in
advance of the meeting. (For the assistance of members a checklist
for use in considering their position on any particular item is included at
the end of this agenda sheet.)
4.

PUBLIC SPEAKING

1329 - 1332

Residents of West Lancashire, on giving notice, may address the
meeting to make representations on any item on the agenda except
where the public and press are to be excluded during consideration of
the item. The deadline for submissions is 10.00am Friday 5 June
2020.
5.

MINUTES

1333 - 1338

To receive as a correct record the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held
on Tuesday, 10 March 2020.
6.

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS

6a

Update to the Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106
Governance and Expenditure Framework
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor D Evans)

1339 - 1382

6b

Quarterly Performance Indicators (Q4 2019/20)
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor A Yates)

1383 - 1402

6c

Anti-Money Laundering Policy
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor A Yates)

1403 - 1422

7.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
It is recommended that members of the press and public be excluded
from the meeting during consideration of the following item of business
in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 4 (Labour Relations) of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Act and as, in all the circumstances of the case
the public interest in maintaining the exemption under Schedule 12A
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.
(Note: No representations have been received about why the meeting
should be open to the public during consideration of the following items
of business).

PART 2 - NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
8.

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS

8a

Revised Christmas Working Arrangements and Changes to the
Harmonisation and Single Status Document
(Relevant Portfolio Holders: Councillors Y Gagen & K Wilkie)

1423 - 1476

We can provide this document, upon request, on audiotape, in large print, in Braille
and in other languages.

MOBILE PHONES: These should be switched off or to ‘silent’ at all meetings.
For further information, please contact:
Jacky Denning on 01695 585384
Or email jacky.denning@westlancs.gov.uk

REMOTE MEETINGS – GUIDANCE
This guidance is designed to assist members when attending remote
meetings.
The guidance should be read in conjunction with the Council's Remote
Meetings Protocol and Procedures Rules
General
1. If members wish to speak on a particular item it will assist the smooth
running of the remote meeting if they indicate to the Chairman their wish
to speak in advance of the meeting.
2. Please join the meeting no later than 15 minutes before the start of the
meeting to ensure that the technology is working correctly.
3. It is a requirement of the remote meetings regulations that any member
participating in a remote meeting must be able to be heard (and if
practicable also be seen) by all other members, officers and public
speakers participating in the meeting and, in turn, be able to hear (and if
practicable see) those persons.
4. It is also a requirement that the meeting be live broadcast and so any
camera (video-feed) should show a non-descript background and
members should take care to ensure that no exempt or confidential
papers can be seen in the video-feed.
5. At the start of the meeting please ensure that your microphone is muted
and your video feed (if available on your device) is paused. Please
remember to unmute your microphone (and unpause your video feed if
available) when invited to speak by the Chairman!
6. At the start of the meeting the Member Services Officer will read out which
Members and Officers are present. The attendance of members will be
recorded.

7. Please remember to mute your mic/pause your video feed when you’re
not talking.
8. Only speak when invited to by the Chair.
9. Please state your name before you make an address.
10. If you’re referring to a specific page or slide mention the page or slide
number.
11. In the event of failure of the live broadcast then the Chairman will
immediately adjourn the meeting until such time as the live broadcast is
restored.
12. In the event that a member's individual remote connection should fail, the
Chairman will call a short adjournment to determine whether the
connection can be re-established (either by video technology or
telephone connection). If connection cannot be restored after a
reasonable period of time then the presumption is that the meeting
should continue, providing the meeting remains quorate.
13. If connection to a member is lost during discussion of an item of business
at a regulatory meeting (planning and licensing committees) that member
will not be able to vote on that item (unless that part of the discussion
during which connection was lost is, in the view of the Chairman, capable
of being repeated for the benefit of the member concerned).
Public speaking
14. Any member of the public participating in a meeting remotely in exercise
of their right to speak must be able to be heard (and if practicable also be
seen) by members, officers and public speakers participating in the same
item of business and, in turn, be able to hear (and if practicable see)
those persons.
15. The Member Services Officer will mute the member of the public once
they have spoken and remove them from the remote meeting on the
instruction of the Chairman once the relevant item of business has been
dealt with. Note: members of the public will be able to view/listen to the
remainder of the meeting via the live broadcast.

Voting
16. Unless a recorded vote is called by a member, the method of voting will
be, at the discretion of the Chairman, by:



General assent by the meeting (where there is no dissent); or
By the Member Services Officer calling out the name of each member
present with members stating "for", "against" or "abstain" to indicate their
vote when their name is called. The Member Services Officer will then
clearly state the result of the vote (to be confirmed by the Chairman)

17. Details of how members voted will not be minuted, unless a recorded
vote is called for prior to the vote taking place.
Declarations of Interest
18. Any member participating in a remote meeting who declares a
disclosable pecuniary interest, or pecuniary interest that would normally
require them to leave the room in which the meeting is taking place must
leave the remote meeting. Their departure will be confirmed by the
Member Services Officer who will invite the relevant member to re-join
the meeting at the appropriate time.
Exclusion of the Press and Public
19. There are times when council meetings are not open to the public when
confidential, or “exempt” items (as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972) are under consideration. The Member Services
Officer will ensure that there are no members of the public in remote
attendance and the live broadcast is ended, once the exclusion has been
agreed by the meeting for that item(s).
20. Every Member in remote attendance must ensure there are no other
persons present in their remote location who are able to hear, see or
record the proceedings (unless those such persons are also entitled to
be so present). Members must declare to the meeting, if at any point
during discussion of the item, this requirement is not met.

Agenda Item 3

MEMBERS INTERESTS 2012
A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter considered at a meeting must disclose the interest to
the meeting at which they are present, except where it has been entered on the Register.
A Member with a non pecuniary or pecuniary interest in any business of the Council must disclose the existence and
nature of that interest at commencement of consideration or when the interest becomes apparent.
Where sensitive information relating to an interest is not registered in the register, you must indicate that you have an
interest, but need not disclose the sensitive information.

Notes

Please tick relevant boxes

General
1.

I have a disclosable pecuniary interest.



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 below

2.

I have a non-pecuniary interest.



You may speak and vote

3.

I have a pecuniary interest because
it affects my financial position or the financial position of a
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii)
and the interest is one which a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the
public interest



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 or 6 below

or

it relates to the determining of any approval consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to me or a
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii)
and the interest is one which a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the
public interest
4.

I have a disclosable pecuniary interest (Dispensation
20/09/16) or a pecuniary interest but it relates to the
functions of my Council in respect of:

(i)

Housing where I am a tenant of the Council, and those
functions do not relate particularly to my tenancy or lease.

(ii)

school meals, or school transport and travelling expenses
where I am a parent or guardian of a child in full time
education, or are a parent governor of a school, and it does
not relate particularly to the school which the child attends.



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 or 6 below



You may speak and vote



You may speak and vote

(iii)

Statutory sick pay where I am in receipt or entitled to receipt
of such pay.



You may speak and vote

(iv)

An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members



You may speak and vote

(v)

Any ceremonial honour given to Members



You may speak and vote

(vi)

Setting Council tax or a precept under the LGFA 1992



You may speak and vote

5.

A Standards Committee dispensation applies (relevant lines
in the budget – Dispensation 20/09/16 – 19/09/20)



See the terms of the dispensation

6.

I have a pecuniary interest in the business but I can attend
to make representations, answer questions or give evidence
as the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the
same purpose



You may speak but must leave the
room once you have finished and
cannot vote

‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ (DPI) means an interest of a description specified below which is your
interest, your spouse’s or civil partner’s or the interest of somebody who you are living with as a husband
or wife, or as if you were civil partners and you are aware that that other person has the interest.
Interest
Prescribed description
Employment, office,
Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
trade, profession or
vocation
Sponsorship
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the relevant
authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses
incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election expenses of
M.
Page 1327

Contracts

Land
Licences
Corporate tenancies

Securities

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which the
relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.
Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant authority.
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the relevant
authority for a month or longer.
Any tenancy where (to M's knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.
Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to M's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the
relevant authority; and
(b) either—
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of
the shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body
corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest;
“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society;
“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant
person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income; “M” means a member of a relevant authority;
“member” includes a co-opted member; “relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member;
“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives notice to the Monitoring Officer of a DPI;
“relevant person” means M or M’s spouse or civil partner, a person with whom M is living as husband or wife or a person with
whom M is living as if they were civil partners;
“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the
meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited
with a building society.

‘non pecuniary interest’ means interests falling within the following descriptions:
10.1(1)(i) Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and
to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority;
(ii)
Any body (a) exercising functions of a public nature; (b) directed to charitable purposes; or (c)
one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy
(including any political party or trade union), of which you are a member or in a position of
general control or management;
(iii) Any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right
for you (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income.
10.2(2)
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting your wellbeing or financial position or the well-being or financial position of a connected person to a
greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the
ward, as the case may be, affected by the decision.
‘a connected person’ means
(a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association, or
(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a
partner, or any company of which they are directors;
(c)
any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or
(d) any body of a type described in sub-paragraph 10.1(1)(i) or (ii).
‘body exercising functions of a public nature’ means
Regional and local development agencies, other government agencies, other Councils, public health
bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions, arms length management organisations
carrying out housing functions on behalf of your authority, school governing bodies.
A Member with a personal interest who has made an executive decision in relation to that matter must
ensure any written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest.
NB Section 21(13) of the LGA 2000 overrides any Code provisions to oblige an executive member to
attend an overview and scrutiny meeting to answer questions.

Page 1328

Agenda Item 4
PUBLIC SPEAKING – PROTOCOL
(For meetings of Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny Committees, Audit &
Governance Committee and Standards Committee)
1.0

Public Speaking

1.1

Residents of West Lancashire may, on giving notice, address any of the
above meetings to make representations on any item on the agenda for those
meetings, except where the public and press are to be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the item.

1.2

A Parish Council Representative may, on giving notice, address any of the
above meetings to make representations on any item on the agenda for those
meetings, except where the public and press are to be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the item.

1.3

The form attached as an Appendix to this Protocol should be used for
submitting requests.

2.0

Deadline for submission

2.1

The prescribed form should be received by Member Services by 10.00 am on
the Friday of the week preceding the meeting. This can be submitted by email to member.services@westlancs.gov.uk or by sending to:
Member Services
West Lancashire Borough Council
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
West Lancashire
L39 2DF

2.2

Completed forms will be collated by Member Services and circulated via email to relevant Members and officers and published on the Council website
via Modgov. Only the name of the speaker (and representative) and details of
the issue to be raised will be published.

2.3

Groups of persons with similar views should elect a spokesperson to speak
on their behalf to avoid undue repetition of similar points. Spokespersons
should identify in writing on whose behalf they are speaking.

3.0

Scope

3.1

Any matters raised must be relevant to an item on the agenda for the meeting.

3.2

The Legal & Democratic Services Manager may reject a submission if it:
(i)
is defamatory, frivolous or offensive;
(ii)
is substantially the same as representations which have already been
submitted at a previous meeting; or

Page 1329

(iii)
4.0

discloses or requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt
information.
Number of items

4.1

A maximum of one form per resident will be accepted for each Agenda Item.

4.2

There will be a maximum of 10 speakers per meeting. Where there are more
than 10 forms submitted by residents, the Legal & Democratic Services
Manager will prioritise the list of those allowed to speak. This will be
considered having regard to all relevant matters including:
a. The order in which forms were received.
b. If one resident has asked to speak on a number of items, priority will be
given to other residents who also wish to speak
c. Whether a request has been submitted in relation to the same issue.
No amendments will be made to the list of speakers once it has been
compiled (regardless of withdrawal of a request to speak).

4.3

All submissions received will be published on the Council's website and
circulated to Members of the relevant body and officers for consideration.

5.0

At the Meeting

5.1

Speakers will be shown to their seats.
At the commencement of
consideration of each agenda item the Leader/Chairman will invite the
speakers to make their representations. Speakers will have up to 3 minutes
to address the meeting. The address must reflect the issue included on the
prescribed form submitted in advance.

5.2

Members may discuss what the speaker/s have said, along with any other
information/representations submitted under this protocol, when all speakers
on that item have finished and will then make a decision. Speakers should
not circulate any supporting documentation at the meeting and should not
enter into a debate with Councillors.

5.4

If residents feel nervous or uncomfortable speaking in public, then they can
ask someone else to do it for them, including a Parish or Borough Councillor
representative. They can also bring an interpreter if they need one. They
should be aware there may be others speaking as well.
(Note: If a Resident wishes to have their Borough Councillor speak on their
behalf, the Borough Councillor is not a member of the body considering the
item.)

5.5

Speakers may leave the meeting at any time, taking care not to disturb the
meeting.

(Please see attached form.)

Page 1330

REQUEST FOR PUBLIC SPEAKING AT MEETINGS

MEETING & DATE …………………………………………………………………
NAME

………………………………………………………………………….

ADDRESS

………………………………………………………………………….
………………………………………………………………………….
Post Code ………………………………………….

PHONE

………………………………………………………

Email

………………………………………………………

Please indicate if you will be in attendance at the
meeting

Please indicate if someone will be speaking on your behalf
at the meeting

YES/NO*
*delete as applicable

YES/NO*
*delete as applicable

If someone is speaking on your behalf please provide their contact details:
NAME

………………………………………………………………………….

PHONE

………………………………………………………

Email

………………………………………………………

Note: This page will not be published.
(P.T.O.)

Page 1331

PLEASE PROVIDE DETAILS OF THE MATTER YOU WISH TO RAISE
Agenda Item

Number ………………….
Title ……………………………………………………..

Details

…………………………………………………………….

…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………….
Name …………………………………

Dated ………………………

Completed forms to be submitted by 10.00am on the Friday of the week
preceding the meeting to:Member Services, West Lancashire Borough Council, 52 Derby Street,
Ormskirk, Lancashire, L39 2DF or
Email: member.services@westlancs.gov.uk
If you require any assistance regarding your attendance at a meeting
(including access) or if you have any queries regarding your submission
please contact Member Services on 01695 585065
Note: This page will be circulated to Members of the Committee and published.

Page 1332

Agenda Item 5

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 10 March 2020

Start:
Finish:

7.00pm
7.12pm

PRESENT:
Councillor:

I Moran (Leader, in
the Chair)
Portfolio

Councillors:

Councillor Yvonne Gagen

Councillor David Evans
Councillor Jenny Wilkie
Councillor Kevin Wilkie
Councillor Kevin Wright
Councillor Adam Yates

Deputy Leader of the Council and
Portfolio Holder for Leisure &
Human Resources
Portfolio Holder for Planning
Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Landlord Services
Portfolio Holder for Street Scene
Portfolio Holder for Health and
Community Safety
Portfolio Holder for Resources &
Transformation

In attendance:
Councillors

T Devine, A Owens, D Westley

Also Present:

Evie Caddick } St Annes School, Ormskirk
Emily Halsall }

Officers:

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey, Chief Operating Officer
Heidi McDougall, Corporate Director of Place & Community
Peter Lightbown, Head of Corporate & Customer Services
Matt Jones, Legal & Democratic Services Manager
Ian Gill, Head of Growth & Development Services
Michelle Williams, Head of Environmental Services
Sue Griffiths, Principal Member Services Officer

90

APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence.

91

SPECIAL URGENCY (RULE 16 ACCESS TO INFORMATION PROCEDURE
RULES)/URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of special urgency.

Page 1333

CABINET

92

HELD:

Tuesday, 10 March 2020

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
1. Councillors J & K Wilkie (tenants of Council accommodation) and Councillor
Wright (relative is a tenant of Council accommodation) declared disclosable
pecuniary interests in agenda items 6(d) 'Housing Strategy' and 6(g) 'HRA
Revenue and Capital Monitoring' but considered they were entitled to speak
and vote by virtue of an exemption as nothing in the report relates particularly
to their relevant tenancy or lease.
2. Councillors I Moran, J Wilkie & K Wilkie declared non-pecuniary interests in
agenda item 6(b) 'Introduction of a Car Lease Salary Sacrifice Scheme' due
to them having relatives employed by the Council.

93

PUBLIC SPEAKING
There are no items under this heading.

94

MINUTES
RESOLVED

95

That the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 14 January
2020 be received as a correct record and signed by the Leader.

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS
Consideration was given to report relating to the following matters requiring
decisions and contained on pages 1143 to 1326 of the Book of Reports.

96

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
Councillor Yates introduced the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement &
Commercial Services which provided details on the key risks facing the Council and
how they are managed, and sought approval to changes to the Risk Management
Policy.
The Head of Finance, Procurement & Commercial Services circulated a revised
report which had been updated to include a reference to COVID-19.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
revised report before it and accepted the reasons contained therein.

RESOLVED A.

That the progress made in relation to the management of the
risks shown in the Key Risks Register (Appendix A to the revised
report) be noted and endorsed.

B.

That the updated Risk Management Policy (Appendix B to the
revised report) be approved.

Page 1334

CABINET

97

HELD:

Tuesday, 10 March 2020

INTRODUCTION OF A CAR LEASE SALARY SACRIFICE SCHEME
Councillor Gagen introduced the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation
and Resources which sought approval for the introduction of a Salary Sacrifice Car
Lease Scheme for staff.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and accepted the reasons contained therein.

98

RESOLVED A.

That the proposal to introduce a Salary Sacrifice Car Lease
Scheme into the Council as an additional benefit in kind for staff
with effect from 1 April 2020 be approved.

B.

That it be noted that the scheme will promote and encourage the
use of the low CO2 emission vehicles to staff to encourage the
support the Council's Carbon neutral ambitions.

C.

That delegated authority be given to the Corporate Director of
Transformation and Resources and the Head of Human
Resources and Organisational Development to undertake the
detailed implementation of the Car Lease Salary Sacrifice
Scheme.

DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT FUNDING ALLOCATION TO PRESTONCARE &
REPAIR HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY
Councillor Wright introduced the report of the Director of Place and Community
which provided an overview of the service provided by Preston Care & Repair to
residents and proposed that a grant be made to the organisation from the disabled
facilities grant funding budget to enable continuation of the service.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and accepted the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED A.

That the Head of Housing & Regulatory Services be given
delegated authority to amend the Housing Renewal Assistance
Policy 2015 to allow DFG funds to be awarded to external
organisations in order to meet the aims of the Regulatory
Reform Order 2002 and the aims of the Better Care Fund .

B.

That 10% of the 2018/19 and 2019/20 disabled facilities grant
allocation underspend be used to commission Preston Care &
Repair to provide services to West Lancashire customers.

C.

That the Head of Housing & Regulatory Services be given

Page 1335

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 10 March 2020

delegated authority in consultation with the relevant Portfolio
Holder to determine the amount of DFG funding, if any, to be
given to Preston Care & Repair on an annual basis.

99

HOUSING STRATEGY
Councillor J Wilkie introduced the report of the Corporate Director of Place &
Community which reviewed the progress and considered an extension to the
Housing Strategy 2014-2019 and sought approval to the action plan for the extended
period.
Minute No.25 of the Landlord Services Committee (Cabinet Working Group) held on
4 March 2020 was circulated at the meeting.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the Minute of the Landlord
Services Committee (Cabinet Working Group) and the details as set out in the report
before it and accepted the reasons contained therein.

100

RESOLVED A.

That the progress of the Housing Strategy for the period 20142019 as shown in Appendix B to the report be noted.

B.

That the operating term of the existing Housing Strategy be
extended to June 2021.

C.

That the Housing Strategy Action Plan 2020-2021 as shown in
Appendix C to the report be approved.

D.

That the Corporate Director of Place and Community be
authorised, after consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder, to
make any further minor amendments to the Housing Strategy
Action Plan 2020-2021.

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS Q3 2019-2020
The Leader introduced the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation and
Resources which presented performance monitoring data for the quarter ended 31
December 2019.
Minute No. 60 of the Corporate and Environmental Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held on 5 March 2020 was circulated at the meeting.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the Minute of the Corporate &
Environmental Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the details as set out in the
report before it, and accepted the reasons contained therein.
Page 1336

CABINET

101

HELD:

Tuesday, 10 March 2020

RESOLVED A.

That the Council’s performance against the indicator set for the
quarter ended 31 December 2019 be noted.

B.

That the call-in procedure is not appropriate for this item as the
report was submitted to the meeting of the Corporate &
Environmental Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 5 March 2020.

COUNCIL PLAN AND CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REVIEW
The Leader introduced the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation &
Resources which sought approval to progress the draft "Council Plan 2020/21" for
consultation and for the retention of the existing Annual Suite and Quarterly
Performance Indicators.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and accepted the reasons contained therein.

102

RESOLVED A.

That the draft “Council Plan 2020/21” attached at Appendix A to
the report be reviewed and approved for wider consultation.

B.

That the stakeholder consultation on the draft plan be undertaken
and the consultation feedback used to refine the final Council
Plan to be considered by Council in October.

C.

That the existing Annual Suite of performance indicators and key
quarterly indicators attached at Appendix C to the report be
retained and reported on following current practice until at least
October 2020.

D.

That call-in is not appropriate for this item as the report is being
submitted to the next meeting of the Executive Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on 26 March 2020.

HRA REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING
Councillor J Wilkie introduced the report of the Corporate Director of Place and
Community which provided an update on the current position of the 2019/20
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Council Housing Capital Investment
Programme.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and accepted the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED A.

That the financial position in respect of the 2019/20 HRA and
Council Housing Capital Investment Programme be noted.

B.

That call-in is not appropriate for this item as the report is being
Page 1337

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 10 March 2020

submitted to the next meeting of the Executive Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on 26th March 2020.

……….………………………..
Leader

Page 1338

Agenda Item 6a
CABINET: 9 JUNE 2020
COUNCIL: 22 JULY 2020

Report of:

Corporate Director of Place and Community

Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor David Evans
Contact for further information: Mr Peter Richards (Extn. 5046)
(E-mail: peter.richards@westlancs.gov.uk)

SUBJECT:

UPDATE TO THE COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY AND
SECTION 106 GOVERNANCE AND EXPENDITURE FRAMEWORK

Wards affected: Borough wide

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To advise Members of an update to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and
Section 106 Governance and Expenditure Framework. The update has been
prepared to respond to Government amendments to the CIL Regulations (2019),
to reflect Cabinet decisions made since the adoption of the original Governance
Framework and as a result of a best practice review of operations designed to
ensure that the framework remains the most appropriate and effective approach
for CIL and S106 expenditure.

1.2

A report will be taken to Council to seek authority to update the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and Section 106 Governance and Expenditure
Framework.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

2.1

That the revisions to the Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106
Governance and Expenditure Framework, as attached at Appendix A, be
endorsed for consideration by Council at the meeting on 22 July.

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

3.1

That the updated Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 Governance
and Expenditure Framework, as attached at Appendix A, be adopted with
immediate effect.

Page 1339

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

CIL enables the Council to raise funds from new developments in the Borough,
with those funds then used to help deliver infrastructure required to support the
new growth. The Council adopted a CIL Charging Schedule in July 2014, which
took effect on certain planning approvals granted from 1 September 2014.

4.2

In April 2015, the Council approved the original CIL and S106 Governance and
Expenditure Framework which set out the structure for the allocation and
spending of developer contributions collected through CIL and Section 106
obligations, as well as a policy for CIL Payment in Kind.

5.0

PROPOSAL

5.1

Since the adoption of the Governance Framework in 2015, there have been a
number of changes warranting a review of the framework.
Amendments to the CIL Regulations

5.2

In September 2019, the Government introduced a further iteration of
amendments to the CIL Regulations, which have changed some of the
administration requirements for the levy. This includes significant changes to how
Councils are required to report CIL and S106 receipts and expenditure, which
need to be reflected in our governance processes. The same amendments have
also removed pooling restrictions on Section 106’s and the requirement for a
Regulation 123 list, which will now be replaced by an alternative method of
reporting called the Infrastructure Funding Statement. From December 2020, it
will be mandatory for the Council to report CIL and S106 receipts and
expenditure through this new statement, to improve public accessibility to, and
transparent reporting of, data relating to developer contributions. Officers are
already in the process of preparing for this statement.
Infrastructure Funding Statement

5.3

The Council are required, through the Infrastructure Funding Statement, to set
out those items of infrastructure which it intends to fund in the following financial
year(s). This can be general, for example, the types of infrastructure items or
projects to be funded with CIL, or indicative of future intent, for example, where
the Council plan to fund an infrastructure item in the longer-term, such as a new
leisure centre, but have not yet formally committed the funds. It should, however,
report that funding which is committed following Cabinet decision, and so it is
proposed to refer the CIL Funding Programme to Cabinet in the November
(rather than the January), for a final decision on which projects should be funded
in the following financial year, to enable selected projects to be included in the
Infrastructure Funding Statement, which must be published in December.

Introduction of financial caps for the annual CIL Funding Programme
Page 1340

5.4

In January 2018, Cabinet agreed that annual CIL Funding Programmes will focus
on smaller-scale projects, requiring £100,000 of CIL funding or less, and limit
expenditure of CIL on those projects through the CIL Funding Programme to
£100,000 each year. In this way, the vast majority of the ‘strategic portion’ of CIL
collected each year will be saved and allocated towards larger-scale projects,
whilst still allowing smaller infrastructure projects to receive funding and be taken
forward for delivery. This approach strikes an appropriate balance between
delivering smaller-scale projects each year and collecting sufficient CIL funding
to make a meaningful contribution to the delivery of larger infrastructure projects.

5.5

With regard the allocation of CIL funding to larger, costlier schemes, such
projects will be expected to be in line with Council strategies and capital
programmes which will ensure that funding is awarded to those programmes and
projects that will contribute most to the achievement of the Council’s strategic
objectives. Appropriate projects will be taken to Cabinet as necessary, to ensure
that the Council can continue to facilitate strategic projects speedily and flexibly
in line with wider strategies, implementation and capital timetables, but the
annual Infrastructure Funding Statement will provide an indication of what
projects and / or types of infrastructure the Council intend to spend strategic CIL
monies on over the subsequent few years.

5.6

Changes to the framework act to clarify these processes. As per the original CIL
Governance Framework, the decision to allocate CIL monies to projects is
delegated to Cabinet.
Expenditure of neighbourhood CIL monies in non-Parished areas

5.7

The CIL Regulations require that 15% of the funds collected within the area
where the chargeable development takes place should be passed to the
community through parish or town councils, known as the ‘neighbourhood’ or
‘local’ portion of CIL. The figure rises to 25% where a neighbourhood plan is
adopted. At present, only Burscough Town Council has an adopted
Neighbourhood Plan. In West Lancashire, there are some areas which are
unparished, including Skelmersdale and Ormskirk. These areas are subject to
regulation 59F of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended), which addresses the
use of CIL in an area without a ‘local council’. In areas without a parish council,
the Council will retain the neighbourhood portion of the CIL receipts but must
engage with the local community where development has taken place and agree
with them how best to spend the neighbourhood portion.

5.8

Whilst the original framework outlined a process for consultation, delivery and
reporting in relation to non-parished neighbourhood monies, it presented very
little detail on how this would all be undertaken as, at the time, this had yet to be
considered in practice. However, since the adoption of the framework, CIL
monies have been collected in Ormskirk and so necessitated the refinement of
an expenditure process for these local, non-parished monies. This process has
been designed to fit alongside the annual consultation on the CIL Funding
Programme, and the Governance and Expenditure Framework has been updated
to reflect these changes.

Government planning guidance
Page 1341

5.9

The Government are keen to ensure new developments provide ecological
improvements, and have introduced a requirement in the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) that they deliver biodiversity net gain. There are a
number of ways in which biodiversity net gain can be secured, which, dependent
on individual circumstances, may include use of planning conditions, obligations
or CIL. The updated Governance and Expenditure Framework has been
updated to clarify that ecological contributions are an infrastructure type that can
be sought through planning obligations.

5.10

Key changes which have been reflected in the proposed update to the
Framework include:










Removal of pooling restrictions relating to Section 106 planning obligations;
Removal of the Regulation 123 list; and
Introduction of annual Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS);
Amendments to the timetabling to be able to accommodate expenditure
decisions in the annual IFS in December each year;
Clarification on the criteria for assessing projects for CIL funding
Clarification of the annual financial cap for smaller projects within the CFP
Process for expenditure of non-Parished neighbourhood CIL monies
Clarification that ecology contributions can be sought through S106
Clarification of varying S106 decision routes dependent on the specific
wording of agreements and proposed value of the schemes

6.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The management of CIL, to ensure that new infrastructure is provided to support
new development in West Lancashire, will have positive implications for
sustainability by providing a valuable source of funding for projects that will help
achieve the Council’s priorities.

7.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

7.1

It is anticipated that there will be minimal financial and/or resource implications
for the Council arising from the proposed changes set out through this report.
Administrative costs are covered by the 5% portion of CIL receipts and the staff
resource is already in place to administrate the process.

8.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

The purpose of the CIL Governance Framework is to maximise the opportunities
for allocating and spending CIL and delivering / securing new infrastructure. As
such, there are limited risks with these recommendations, which seek to take
advantage of the opportunities related to CIL.

9.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

Page 1342

9.1

There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report, as the
report is not deciding how funding is spent, only on the process for making those
decisions. However, CIL monies can be used on schemes to improve health and
wellbeing, including walking, cycling, recreation and outdoor spaces, as long as
that new / improved infrastructure is necessary because of new development.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.

Equality Impact Assessment
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees,
elected members and / or stakeholders. Therefore, no Equality Impact Assessment is
required.

Appendices
Appendix A

Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 Governance and
Expenditure Framework

Page 1343

West Lancashire Borough Council

(Update to the) Governance Framework for
Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 Expenditure

June 2020

Heidi McDougall
Corporate Director of Place and Community
West Lancashire Borough Council
www.westlancs.gov.uk

1

Page 1345

Contents
Chapter

Title

Page

1.0

Introduction

3

2.0

Identifying infrastructure needs in West Lancashire

5

3.0

Planning contributions (Section 106 Agreements)

6

4.0

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

11

5.0

The CIL Local Portion: Apportionment and Application

14

6.0

The CIL Strategic Portion: Process for prioritisation and
expenditure

17

7.0

CIL Payment in Kind

24

8.0

Monitoring and reporting

26

9.0

Summary of differences between S106 and CIL processes

28

Appendix 1 Neighbourhood Portion Protocol

29

Appendix 2 Strategic CIL Funding Protocol

33

Appendix 3 S106 Planning Obligations Protocol

34

Appendix 4 Affordable Housing Section 106 Protocol

36

2

Page 1346

1.0

INTRODUCTION

1.1

In 2014, West Lancashire Borough Council introduced the Community Infrastructure
Levy, which allows local authorities in England to raise funds from developers who
are undertaking new building projects in their area. The money collected must be
used to fund the provision, improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of
infrastructure to support new development. It cannot be used to remedy existing
deficiencies unless these are exacerbated by new development.

1.2

The Council’s adopted CIL charging schedule sets out the levy rates that apply to new
developments across the Borough. The schedule was informed by local economic
viability evidence and was subject to consultation and independent examination
before it was adopted by the Council on 23 July 2014, with effect from 1 September
2014.

1.3

As the CIL charging and collecting authority, the Council must administrate CIL in
direct accordance with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended). Those regulations
state that the majority of CIL monies must be applied to fund the provision,
improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of infrastructure to support
the development of the Council’s area. A smaller proportion of monies, collected in
an area, are passed to local councils to be spent on projects in their area, with the
intent that they can directly benefit the area in which a development occurred. A
much smaller proportion of monies are retained by the Borough Council for
administration costs. To ensure that the whole process is transparent, the CIL
Regulations stipulate that Councils must report all CIL receipts and expenditure on
an annual basis.

1.4

The CIL Governance and Expenditure Framework was first prepared and adopted by
the Council in 2015 to set out how the Council would determine and report the
expenditure of CIL receipts. Since then, there have been a series of amendments to
the CIL Regulations, most notably in September 2019, which have changed some of
the requirements to CIL’s administration. For example, the 2019 amendments made
significant changes to how Councils are required to report CIL receipts and
expenditure, which need to be reflected in our governance processes. The same
amendments have also removed pooling restrictions on Section 106s and the
requirement for a Regulation 123 list which will now be replaced by an alternative
method of reporting. In addition, it is deemed good practice to regularly review
operations to ensure that they remain the most appropriate and effective.

1.5

This document will form the revised framework relating to the governance of the CIL
funding process, as well as the Council’s approach to Section 106 (S106) obligations
which are also used to fund new infrastructure.

1.6

Whilst CIL relates to the overall cumulative impact of development in general,
legislation governing the use of S106 obligations means that they must be used to
offset the implications of an individual development (necessary to make a
development acceptable in planning terms, directly related to the development and
3

Page 1347

fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development). Therefore, whilst
CIL funds are held within a centralised pot, with flexibility on how to spend those
receipts, S106 agreements specify a particular use for the sums received. The
expenditure process for CIL and S106 therefore must differ. Nevertheless, the 2019
CIL regulation amendments have made reporting of both CIL and S106 receipts and
expenditure mandatory, from December 2020, within a new ‘Infrastructure Funding
Statement’. The Government are keen to improve public accessibility to, and
transparent reporting of, data relating to developer contributions.
1.7

CIL revenue, and decisions relating to its expenditure, must operate within a
collection of multiple inter-related documents, plans and frameworks (Figure 1).
Clear governance, prioritisation and effective project management are required to
ensure that CIL funds, and any existing or future S106 funds, are used most
effectively to deliver infrastructure across the Borough and to successfully mitigate
the impacts of development. This approach will assist in securing a high quality
environment and sustainable economic growth in West Lancashire.

1.8

This document will set out:






The identification of infrastructure needs
Overview of S106 and CIL
Expenditure process for S106 commuted sums
Expenditure process for CIL monies
Monitoring and Reporting

Figure 1: Documents feeding into the CIL Funding Process

Infrastructure
Funding
Statement

CIL
Governance
Framework

Statement of
Community
Involvement

CIL Funding
Programme

Infrastructure
Delivery
Schedule

Local Plan

Infrastructure
Delivery Plan

4

Page 1348

2.0

IDENTIFYING INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS IN WEST LANCASHIRE
Infrastructure Delivery Plan

2.1

The Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) provides important evidence regarding the
infrastructure required to support development in the Borough, advising on both
current provision and delivery, and anticipated future requirements. Infrastructure is
essential to support additional (as well as existing) housing provision and economic
growth, to mitigate the current and anticipated effects of climate change, and to
create thriving and sustainable communities.

2.2

The IDP is prepared in close liaison with a range of infrastructure and service
providers and is an iterative process, designed to continue to identify and respond to
infrastructure opportunities and needs in close partnership with providers.

2.3

The first IDP was produced to inform the preparation of the Local Plan (2012-2027),
and since then has been updated with each stage of the Local Plan Review process.
As the Council starts to prepare a new Local Plan, the IDP will form an important part
of the background evidence.

Infrastructure Delivery Schedule
2.4

Alongside the IDP, sits an Infrastructure Delivery Schedule (IDS) which lists all the
infrastructure schemes identified as being necessary to support that development
proposed through the Local Plan. It is a live document, able to be updated at any
time.

2.5

The IDS records the details for each of the individual schemes listed within it,
including, where known, delivery timescales, anticipated costs and any identified
funding streams which can assist delivery. This information helps to identify and
evidence a funding gap i.e. those schemes where a funding deficit remains and
where CIL may be considered in order to plug this gap. Not all schemes within the
IDS will require CIL funding, as they may be deliverable through other sources
including Government or private/developer funding. The inclusion of a project on
the IDS does not guarantee that it will receive CIL funding in future; indeed CIL is not
capable of funding all infrastructure. CIL can, however, be used as a mechanism to
lever in additional funding and projects with match funding available may receive
greater weight during assessment.

2.6

The purpose of the IDS is therefore, in the first instance, to record infrastructure
schemes to support new development. Yet the IDS also comprises an important part
of the CIL Expenditure Process, which will be explained below in Section 5.0.

5

Page 1349

3.0

PLANNING CONTRIBUTIONS (SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS)

3.1

S106 obligations must be used to deliver benefits to local communities that can
offset the negative impacts caused as result of a specific development. The CIL
Regulations 2010 (amended) state that obligations may only be used where it is:
i)
ii)
iii)

necessary to make a development acceptable in planning terms;
directly related to the development; and
fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

3.2

Historically, S106 obligations have been used by the Council to secure affordable
housing, transport and highways improvements and public open space contributions
or on site provision. Although S106 obligations can be used to secure other
infrastructure requirements such as health and education provision, there has been
limited usage of such obligations within the borough for these types of
infrastructure.

3.3

Since the introduction of the CIL Regulations in 2010, the Government’s intent has
been that the use of S106 obligations should be scaled back to site specific issues
and that the focus for developer contributions should be on an up-front CIL system
to help deliver infrastructure requirements that provides more certainty to all.

3.4

To ensure that developers were not ‘double-charged’ for developer contributions,
through both CIL and S106, CIL Regulation 123 required that Councils published a list
of infrastructure projects or types which it intended to fund wholly or partly through
CIL. Any items not included within the Regulation 123 list were to then be secured
through a S106 obligation where this requirement met the above statutory tests. It
also prevented a Council pooling contributions from more than five S106 obligations,
entered into after 6 April 2010, to deliver an infrastructure project or type. These
measures were designed to encourage local authorities to move away from S106
obligations and to CIL.

3.5

The 2019 CIL amendments, introduced 1 September 2019, abolished Regulation 123
and in doing so removed pooling restrictions and the requirement for a Regulation
123 list. Instead, Councils must, from December 2020, annually produce an
Infrastructure Funding Statement which includes a requirement to set out those
infrastructure types or projects it intends to fund through CIL, along with estimates
of anticipated future receipts, as well as revenue and expenditure to date. The
Infrastructure Funding Statement will be detailed later in this document. The
changes also mean that Councils are no longer restricted in terms of how many
obligations they can pool together to fund a single infrastructure project.

6

Page 1350

Use of S106 contributions
3.6

In accordance with the statutory tests governing the use of planning obligations,
S106s will continue to be used to address site specific issues and to secure affordable
housing, where those matters cannot be addressed through planning condition. This
will be done on a site by site basis and in line with the adopted Local Plan and any
relevant Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) in effect at the time of decisionmaking.
For transport and highways

3.7

As the Council is a two tier authority, site-specific transport and highways
contributions are formally secured through S106 obligations based on requests from
the Highways Authority (LCC), who is consulted on a site by site basis.

3.8

LCC, as the Highways Authority and public transport executive for Lancashire, has
prepared the West Lancashire Highways and Transport Masterplan. This document,
and its sub-documents such as the Route Management Strategy, provides greater
detail relating to strategic highways and transport improvements required across
West Lancashire to deliver economic growth and support development in the Local
Plan. The improvements cover all aspects including the highways network, rail
network, bus services, cycling and walking.

3.9

In addition, LCC has produced a Local Transport Plan for Lancashire, LTP3, which sets
out LCC’s spending priorities in relation to transport until 2021. An LTP4 is currently
being prepared by LCC to replace LTP3. The Highways & Transport Masterplan and
the LTP are both key documents and have informed the Infrastructure Delivery
Schedule (IDS) and will continue to be considered in determining how CIL
contributions and other sources of available funding could be spent on highways and
transport infrastructure in West Lancashire.

3.10

In relation to case by case site-specific highways improvements, LCC will still have
the use of both S106 and Section 278 (S278) obligations, where localised conditions
of a site require specific mitigation measures. These will continue to be
communicated through individual consultation responses to development proposals.
For clarity, both S106 and S278 obligations may only be used where the requirement
meets the necessary statutory tests limiting the improvement to site specific
measures. In addition, S106 and S278 obligations may only be used where the
Council does not intend to fund such infrastructure improvements through CIL and
have indicated this through the Infrastructure Funding Statement. An example could
be specific junction improvements or highway widening.
For public open space

7

Page 1351

3.11

The provision of site-specific open space is currently secured based on the
application of the standard requirements within the Provision of Public Open Space
in New Residential Development SPD (July 2014), which sets out the new
requirements for development proposals in securing adequate levels and types of
public open space. Where development is of a substantial size, 40 units or more,
policy requires that open space is delivered on-site and that maintenance of the
open space is the responsibility of the developer. However, in exceptional
circumstances, and where it can be justified, maintenance may be passed to the
Council along with payment for a period of 10 years. Where this is the case, the
developer will be required to enter into a Section 106 obligation with the Council to
secure such funding.

3.12

It is currently anticipated that this practice will continue for the foreseeable future,
but any update to this process will be set out in any newly adopted Local Plan or
accompanying SPD.

For affordable housing
3.13

The provision of affordable housing is secured through S106 obligations that are
based on the Council’s Affordable Housing Policy (RS2) within the West Lancashire
Borough Council Local Plan (2012 – 2027) on a site by site basis and subject to
viability constraints. This approach will remain unchanged and affordable housing
will continue to be secured through the use of S106 obligations or planning
conditions, in line with the Local Plan Affordable Housing Policy (RS2).
For education

3.14

While requests are rare, in certain circumstances it may be appropriate for
contributions to education provision to be sought on some developments. Such
contributions will continue to be secured through S106 agreements, where there is a
demonstrated need for a specific development to contribute to such an
improvement to make the development acceptable in planning terms and subject to
development viability. LCC, as Education authority, will advise on a case by case basis
as to when contributions are necessitated, based on the LCC Methodology for
Education Contributions in Lancashire (2016).

For ecology
3.15

In some cases, the Council can seek to secure planning contributions to provide
ecological improvements. The introduction of a requirement in the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) to ensure new developments deliver biodiversity net gain
enables Councils to secure off-site gains, secured by way of planning obligations or
guidance, where such net gain cannot be provided on site through the development.
Where significant harm cannot be wholly or partially avoided, Councils can look to

8

Page 1352

secure effective mitigation measures through planning obligations1. Applicants may
also propose measures to achieve biodiversity net gain through a unilateral
undertaking. Benefits can be achieved entirely on-site or by using off-site gains
where necessary. Off-site measures can sometimes be secured from ‘habitat banks’,
which comprise areas of enhanced or created habitats which generate biodiversity
unit ‘credits’. Dependent on individual circumstances, planning conditions,
obligations or even CIL (where a Council indicates it as an infrastructure item on their
IFS) may all be potential mechanisms for securing and funding ecological
enhancements.

Expenditure Process for S106 Obligations
3.16

Whilst the Council will use CIL as the primary method of collecting planning
contributions, historic S106 funds along with any newly secured funds on a site by
site basis will continue to be spent in accordance with the related legal agreements
as drafted. Therefore, a protocol to manage this process must be in place.
Non-specific schemes

3.17

Historically, S106 agreements have been used to secure funding through the
broadest definition of provision, for example ‘alternative transport’ or ‘new or
improved public open space’. The expenditure of S106 contributions must be done
in line with the specific wording of the relevant S106 agreement to ensure that it is a
legitimate use of the monies. The Council must ensure that proposed projects meet
the stipulations of the agreements that the monies stem from.

3.18

The Council regularly issue notification to Parish Councils and Ward Members of
available S106 receipts in each parish/ward, and invite them to suggest schemes for
the use of the monies. In addition, the Council’s leisure or planning services, and
County Council’s transport and highways services, are also able to suggest schemes.
Proposals must be sent to the Council’s S106/CIL Officer who will circulate proposals
to the relevant officer working group.

3.19

The Council have two officer working groups; one for public open space, and one for
transport and highways. Both groups have a mix of officers from relevant
departments and include strategic planning, development management and legal.
For public open space there are also representatives from leisure, estates, housing
and street scene teams, and, for the transportation group, representatives from
highways and development and public transport at LCC attend. The latter includes a
number of LCC officers as they are the responsible Highways Authority and Public
Transport for the borough and the main delivery body of such infrastructure.

3.20

The officer working groups assess whether or not proposals meet the stipulations of
the originating S106 agreement. Where the group determine proposals do not meet

1

See PPG ‘natural environment’ - https://www.gov.uk/guidance/natural-environment

9

Page 1353

the S106 requirements, officers will work with the proposer(s) to refine the project
so it will accord with the requirements, or, in limited cases, will outright reject the
proposal. Where the group consider proposals do meet the S106 requirements, a
report will be prepared to seek Cabinet approval for the project.

Specific schemes
3.21

In some cases, particularly since the introduction of CIL, the Council has stipulated
that certain projects or types of infrastructure must be provided using S106
obligations, for example the funding of pupil places in schools. The ultimate use of
the monies is clearly stated and so there is less of a requirement to check that the
project accords with the definitions of the agreement. In these cases, the relevant
departments at Borough or County Council, or other relevant infrastructure
providers, are notified of the availability of monies with which to develop that
project’s design. Detailed information on the project, including costs and delivery,
must be submitted to officers, who will check the appropriateness of the scheme.
Subject to the details being acceptable, and the value of the project being under the
Council protocol limit of £10,000, officers will then seek Delegated Authority from
the Corporate Director of Place and Community in conjunction with the relevant
portfolio holder for Planning, for authorisation to proceed with the project. Where
the S106 agreement specifies a scheme, but the value exceeds the value of £10,000,
the decision will be referred to Cabinet.

3.22

Once projects are approved, through either route, officers will liaise to ensure
project delivery within the timeframes of the agreement and project.

3.23

Given affordable housing will continue to be secured through S106 obligations or
planning conditions and will remain unaffected by CIL, this protocol remains
unchanged (Appendix 3).

3.24

For the avoidance of doubt, the following will apply:
Specific scheme under value of £10,000

Delegated to Director of Place and
Community in conjunction with the
Portfolio Holder

Specific scheme equal to, or above, Delegated to Cabinet
value of £10,000
Non-specific scheme below £10,000

Delegated to Cabinet

Non-specific scheme equal to, or above Delegated to Cabinet
value of, £10,000

10

Page 1354

11

Page 1355

4.0

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
CIL funding splits and apportionment

4.1

The CIL regulations specify how CIL funds should be apportioned for expenditure.
Administration Fee – 5%

4.2

Of the 100% of CIL revenue collected, the regulations permit the Council to retain 5%
(annually) for the purpose of administering the CIL. This is to allow for the cost of
preparing the CIL charging schedule, the additional Council resources to administer
the collection, spending and monitoring of CIL funds and for the cost of IT software
to help administrate the CIL process.
Neighbourhood Portion - 15 or

Admin fee,
5%

25%
4.3

The CIL Regulations require that
15% of the funds collected within
the area where the chargeable
development takes place be passed
to the community through parish
or town councils, capped at £100
per Council Tax dwelling plus an
applied indexation figure. The
figure rises to 25% for those areas
with adopted neighbourhood plans
in place and there is then no cap in
place.

Neighbourh
ood
portion,
15%

Strategic
portion,
80%

4.4

Where a neighbourhood plan is adopted, the 25% is applied to those liabilities
created after the date of adoption (i.e. planning permissions granted after the date
of the neighbourhood plan’s adoption). It is not applied retrospectively to existing
liabilities or receipts.

4.5

Where there is no parish or town council (e.g. Ormskirk and Skelmersdale), the
Council will retain the neighbourhood portion and, in line with regulation 59F of the
CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended), the Council must spend the funds within the
“relevant area”, i.e. this is ring fenced for expenditure in either Ormskirk or
Skelmersdale, based upon where the development took place. CIL Planning Practice
Guidance requires that the Council engages with the local community in an open and
transparent way in order to prioritise how these funds should be spent.

Strategic Portion – 70 or 80%

12

Page 1356

4.6

The Borough Council is able to retain the majority of the CIL revenue collected in
order to deliver strategic infrastructure priorities. Once the administration fee and
the neighbourhood portion have been deducted, this will leave either 70% or 80% of
the funds depending on whether there is a Neighbourhood Plan or not. This can be
spent on strategic priorities for infrastructure identified by the Borough Council, in
consultation with infrastructure providers, the public and other stakeholders. This
strategic portion does not have to be spent within the parish or ward in which
development occurs but can be pooled and spent anywhere in the Borough, as long
as it is on infrastructure that supports new development.
Definition of Infrastructure

4.7

In terms of what this strategic portion can be spent on, the CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended), Regulation 59(1) reads as follows:
A charging authority must apply CIL to funding the provision, improvement,
replacement, operation or maintenance of infrastructure to support the development
of its area.

4.8

In terms of how infrastructure is defined in the context of this regulation, Section
216(2) of the Planning Act 2008 provides an inclusive list of infrastructure types that
can fall within the definition of infrastructure for the purposes of CIL. Section 216
goes on to allow the CIL regulations to vary this list, which it does through CIL
Regulation 63 (by excluding affordable housing from the definition of infrastructure).
Infrastructure therefore includes:
(a) roads and other transport facilities,
(b) flood defences,
(c) schools and other educational facilities,
(d) medical facilities,
(e) sporting and recreational facilities, and
(f) open spaces.

4.9

The list, however, is not exhaustive and so, in line with the guidance, CIL can be used
to fund a wider range of items. CIL Planning Practice Guidance2 states that “the levy
can be used to fund a very broad range of facilities such as play areas, open spaces,
parks and green spaces, cultural and sports facilities, healthcare facilities, district
heating schemes and police stations and other community safety facilities.” but
emphasises, in accordance with CIL Regulation 63, the levy cannot be used to fund
affordable housing.

4.10

The levy can be used to increase the capacity of existing infrastructure or to repair
failing existing infrastructure, if that is necessary to support development.

2

Paragraph: 144 Reference ID: 25-144-20190901, Revision date: 01 09 2019

13

Page 1357

Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace
4.11

Charging authorities can choose to use levy income to provide new or improved
areas of open space, including Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANGS) or
similar approaches, which provide recreation space to deflect visitors and reduce the
impacts on protected sites arising from development. SANGS are open space and are
within the definition of the levy. To ensure compliance with the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, the local authority must be clear that it
intends to prioritise the use of the levy to deliver SANGS and maintain its
effectiveness in the long term. Where appropriate to do so, this should be set within
the relevant development plan and within the Infrastructure Funding Statement.

4.12

The Council’s preferred approach is to use S106s to secure SANGS (or any ecological
mitigation) to ensure that the requirements accord with Biodiversity Net Gain
stipulations, are site-specific and meet the tests of CIL Regulation 122.

14

Page 1358

5.0

THE LOCAL PORTION: APPORTIONMENT AND APPLICATION OF 'LOCAL' CIL MONIES

5.1

The CIL Regulations require that 15% of the CIL receipts collected should be passed
to the local community through the parish or town council (the ‘local council’). This is
subject to a capping of £100 per council tax dwelling, plus the application of an
indexation rate, within the local area where the development has taken place. These
funds are to be spent at the discretion of the local council on local priorities and in
accordance with regulation 59C of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended), which
states:
A local council must use CIL receipts passed to it in accordance with regulation 59A or
59B to support the development of the local council’s area, or any part of that area,
by funding –
(a) the provision, improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of
infrastructure; or
(b) anything else that is concerned with addressing the demands that development
places on an area.

5.2

Where a neighbourhood plan is adopted, in line with regulation 59A of the CIL
Regulations 2010 (as amended), the minimum requirement to be passed to the ‘local
council’ would rise to 25% and is not subject to capping.

5.3

Figure 2 is an extract from the Government’s CIL Guidance Document (September
2019) and demonstrates the relationship between CIL receipts and the
neighbourhood proportion in differing scenarios.

Figure 2: Relationship between the levy and neighbourhood plans in England

Source: Gov.uk CIL Guidance, Paragraph 145, Revision date September 2019

15

Page 1359

Expenditure of CIL local monies in Parished areas
5.4

In West Lancashire, the majority of the Borough is covered by parish councils.
Therefore, the CIL Regulations require the Council to transfer the neighbourhood
portion of CIL receipts generated in these areas directly to the parish council for the
area twice a year.

5.5

Regulation 59D states that, in the absence of a timetable agreed by the Council as
charging authority, relevant payments should be made by 28 October and 28 April.
Payments are transferred to the parish council via payment requisition in accordance
with these dates. This process is set out clearly in Appendix 1.

5.6

Prior to each transfer date, the Parish Council are notified of the sums to be paid to
them. Should they wish to, they may confirm in writing that they wish the Borough
Council to retain any or all of the neighbourhood portion due to them, in order to
spend it on more strategic infrastructure priorities.

5.7

The Parish Council will be free to spend the funds handed over on local priorities
(subject to regulation 59C referred to above) and are obliged to report annually on
CIL expenditure. In line with statutory provisions, the Council has the right to recover
CIL receipts that have been ‘misapplied’ or not spent within a 5 year period.

5.8

Parish Councils must publish their CIL annual reports on their website, and/or submit
them to the Borough Council. The Council will use these reports to check
expenditure is in accordance with the regulations. Parish Councils should ensure that
they use their earliest receipts first, so to avoid having to return monies.

Expenditure of CIL local monies in Non-Parished areas
5.9

In West Lancashire, there are some areas which are unparished, including
Skelmersdale and Ormskirk. These areas are subject to regulation 59F of the CIL
Regulations 2010 (as amended), which addresses the use of CIL in an area without a
‘local council’.

5.10

For clarity, where funds are collected in an area without a parish council in place, the
neighbourhood portion is not ring fenced to the ward in which development has
taken place but the neighbourhood portion may be spent in the entire relevant area
without a local council, e.g. the neighbourhood portion of a CIL receipt from a
development in Scott ward can be spent on new infrastructure anywhere in the nonparished area covered by the three Ormskirk wards of Scott, Knowsley and Derby.

5.11

In areas without a parish council, the Council will retain the neighbourhood portion
of the CIL receipts but must engage with the local community where development
has taken place and agree with them how best to spend the neighbourhood portion.

16

Page 1360

5.12

The Council is required to set out clearly and transparently their approach to
engagement and this is set within the Council’s Statement of Community
Involvement.

5.13

Each year, the Council will consult on the use of available CIL monies in non-Parished
areas alongside the strategic consultation process. Of those schemes assessed and
shortlisted for CIL expenditure in the financial year, officers will check which fall
within non-Parished areas and whether relevant local monies could instead be
utilised in place of strategic monies. This ensures that strategic monies are used in
the most flexible of ways to ensure best value.

17

Page 1361

6.0

THE STRATEGIC PORTION – PROCESS FOR PRIORITISATION AND EXPENDITURE

6.1

Once CIL funds are received and the Council has deducted the allocations to the
administration fee and the neighbourhood portion, it is vital that there is a robust
and transparent mechanism in place for prioritising how the strategic portion is
spent.
The Infrastructure Delivery Schedule (IDS)

6.2

The IDS helped to support and underpin the Local Plan and demonstrate the funding
gap with which to justify the introduction of the CIL Charge. It records those
infrastructure projects that have been identified as needed to support the growth
and development across the Borough. The IDS records details of infrastructure
schemes including information about their costs, funding gaps, other funding
sources, and delivery timescales. The IDS is a “live” document, regularly updated
with the latest information on infrastructure projects and improvements. The IDS,
therefore, forms an appropriate base for considering how the spending of CIL funds
may be prioritised.

6.3

In order to allow officers and elected members to think more broadly and
strategically about infrastructure delivery, the IDS will continue to include schemes
and projects expected to be delivered within the short term (up to 1 year), medium
term (1-5 years) and long term (5 years plus). The IDS will be published annually to
inform decision-making on how CIL monies should be spent.
Updating the IDS via engagement with Infrastructure Providers

6.4

The Council will continue to liaise regularly with a range of infrastructure and service
providers to update information on existing projects and to identify any new projects
for inclusion on the IDS. These providers include, but are not limited to,:












6.5

Lancashire County Council
West Lancashire Borough Council
West Lancashire Clinical Commissioning Group
NHS England
Lancashire Wildlife Trust
Environment Agency
Network Rail
Highways England
North West Ambulance Service
Lancashire Police
Lancashire Fire and Rescue

Through discussions, providers are required to identify where deficiencies in
infrastructure exist or will become apparent as a result of new development and
growth. Where possible, they are then required to suggest schemes or projects to
18

Page 1362

assist in meeting the deficiency and, if appropriate, these would then be included in
the IDS. Providers are encouraged to provide as much information as possible on
delivery timescales and other sources of funding in order to enable officers and
members to make informed decisions.
6.6

The Council will contact infrastructure and service providers, Members and Parish
Councils at least once a year (usually in Spring) to invite them to submit updated
information relating to existing schemes on the IDS, or to submit new schemes for
inclusion on the IDS.

6.7

The public are also able to submit suggestions for schemes through the consultation
processes (explained below).

Identifying and shortlisting projects
6.8

Schemes within the IDS will be assessed and shortlisted as to their priority and
suitability for delivery using CIL funding. This, together with the level of CIL funding
available, will inform and justify which schemes are brought forward through the
CFP.

6.9

Schemes to be included within the CFP should meet an infrastructure need
generated by new development in the current Local Plan period and be included in
the Infrastructure Delivery Schedule (IDS). In addition, schemes should be shown to
deliver enduring benefits and preferably be identified within a relevant strategy(s)
document. Schemes may be favoured where they offer multiple and/or wider as
well as local benefits and lever in other funds that wouldn’t otherwise be available
(match funding).

6.10

Therefore, if an elected representative, an infrastructure provider or any other
stakeholder wishes CIL to fund, either wholly or partly, any particular infrastructure
projects, the first step is to demonstrate why the given project should be included
within the IDS and how it meets the infrastructure needs generated by new
development. A proforma and accompanying guidance note are available to assist
this process.
Assessment

6.11

To assess projects on the IDS for CIL funding, and to assist in prioritising those
projects which are suitable, the Council uses the information submitted on each
project to assess schemes against a number of key criteria.
1. Are CIL monies needed to deliver the project?
2. Does the project meet a local need or demand that has arisen from new
development?
3. When can the infrastructure be delivered?
4. Are clear project costs and funding known?
19

Page 1363

5. Are there ‘Neighbourhood’ CIL monies available in the Parish / Non-Parished area
the project is located within that could be used to wholly or partly fund the
project?
6. Does the project help meet at least one of the Council’s corporate priories?
7. Is the project identified within a relevant local strategy, e.g. the Local Plan, the
Highways and Transport Masterplan, the Leisure Strategy?
6.12

The first criterion ensures that all infrastructure projects on the IDS which do not
require CIL monies are separated off at the outset, reducing unnecessary assessment
of projects. The second is essential as CIL monies can only be spent on infrastructure
that meets a local need or demand that has arisen from new development. Use of
these criteria enable officers to rule out all infrastructure projects which are
ineligible to receive CIL monies from further assessment, based on information
existing at that time.

6.13

The third criterion is necessary to understand whether the project is technically
deliverable within two years of receiving the funding and so might benefit from
having CIL monies allocated to it for spending in the following financial years. The
fourth criterion allows us to consider whether there are clear and realistic costs and
firm funding proposals (other than a request for CIL monies) in place that would
confirm that the project is not only technically deliverable but financially deliverable
as well. Where costs are unknown, the assessment assumes the project is not
financially deliverable within the next two years as the Council needs to see more
robust proposals before allocating CIL monies to a project. Where a project
proposes match-funding from another source, if that match-funding has not been
secured, there must also be questions over the deliverability of that project, albeit
those questions may not ultimately rule out a project entirely in this assessment,
depending on the precise circumstances of the match-funding.

6.14

A further consideration within this fourth criterion, but not a definitive one in
decision-making, is also whether the project will provide greater value for money by
using CIL monies to lever in other funding. While levering in match-funding would
clearly be a positive, it would not be appropriate to disadvantage a project simply
because it does not have access to other funding and would rely solely on CIL
monies, hence this factor is not a key criteria.

6.15

The fifth criterion allows the Council to consider whether a project might be more
suitably funded by “Neighbourhood” CIL monies that are available in an area (the
15% or 25% of CIL income from a development which is automatically passed to the
local Parish Council or, in a non-parished area, set aside by the Council to spend
specifically in that area) in order to save "strategic" CIL monies for the larger projects
that serve a wider area.

6.16

The sixth and seventh criteria are necessary to help differentiate and prioritise
between projects that meet all of the first other criteria (i.e. when the assessment
produces a fairly long shortlist) by considering whether the projects help meet at

20

Page 1364

least one of the Council’s Corporate Priorities and/or are identified within a relevant
local strategy as being of strategic importance.

Match Funding
6.17

CIL alone will be unable to fund all required infrastructure in the Borough and is
instead designed to lever-in match funding opportunities. As set out above, projects
which cannot secure additional match funding will not be discounted from
consideration, however, the Council will look favourably to those projects who
identify and secure other funding sources.

Draft CIL Funding Programme (CFP)
6.18

The results of the shortlisting will be reported through a draft CIL Funding
Programme report. Officers will seek Cabinet approval to go out to public
consultation with the draft programme, before making their final recommendations
to Cabinet, who will make the ultimate decision.
Shortlisting projects costing less than £100,000

6.19

Whilst the Council are keen to use CIL funding to deliver infrastructure projects in
the short-term, the Council also wish to ensure that CIL is allowed to accumulate so
as to provide larger funds to support the delivery of larger, costlier schemes and
medium to long-term projects. Therefore, Cabinet agreed, in January 2018, that
annual CIL Funding Programmes will focus on smaller-scale projects (requiring
£100,000 of CIL funding or less) and limit expenditure of CIL on those projects
through the CIL Funding Programme to £100,000 each year. In this way, the vast
majority of the ‘strategic portion’ will be saved and allocated towards larger-scale
projects, requiring more than £100,000 of CIL funding, which will be coming forward
in subsequent years, whilst still allowing smaller infrastructure projects to have CIL
funding allocated to them and be taken forward in the current year through the
usual decision-making process. This approach strikes an appropriate balance
between delivering smaller-scale projects each year and collecting sufficient CIL
funding to make a meaningful contribution to the delivery of larger infrastructure
projects.

6.20

In any year where the £100,000 cap is not reached, the remaining balance will be
moved into the ‘large-scale schemes’ fund.

6.21

In any one funding year it is likely that there will be several schemes recommended
to receive CIL funding as the Council are keen to deliver as many infrastructure
projects as possible with CIL monies. Typically, many of the projects that can be
delivered in the short-term are of lower value than those that are planned for the
long-term. As per the original CIL Governance Framework, adopted in 2015, the

21

Page 1365

decision on how to allocate this £100,000 annually will continue to be delegated to
Cabinet.

Shortlisting projects costing more than £100,000
6.22

It is likely that CIL funding for larger, costlier schemes (for example the delivery of a
new leisure centre), will be in line with Council strategies and Capital programmes,
whether that of the Borough and/or County Council. In these cases, public
consultation is not considered necessary as such strategies and programmes will
already have been consulted on. The capital strategy will ensure the effectiveness of
capital resource is optimised by allocating funding to those programmes and projects
that will contribute most to the achievement of the Council’s strategic objectives.

6.23

Schemes will be assessed and shortlisted through a similar process as above to
ensure that larger strategic schemes, which are to be taken forward using CIL
funding, are deliverable and have considered other sources of funding. Rather than
limit authorisation of CIL expenditure on such strategic schemes to once a year, as
with those projects £100,000 cap for the annual CIL Funding Programme,
appropriate projects will be taken to Cabinet as necessary. This ensures that the
Council can continue to facilitate strategic projects speedily and flexibly in line with
wider strategies, implementation and capital timetables. Authority to allocate CIL
funds on these larger strategic schemes will be delegated to Cabinet, irrespective of
the cost of an individual scheme.

Timescales for the CIL Funding Programme
6.24

The timescales for updating the IDS and producing the CFP should sit alongside the
Council’s process for the Capital Spending Programme to ensure that the IDS reflects
the Council’s corporate priorities and explores all opportunities for match funding.
Below is an indicative timescale for the IDS and CFP review:

Stage Date

Schemes costing less than £100,000

Schemes costing more
than £100,000
March / April Close of financial year, and CIL receipts and expenditure for that period
confirmed. Projected CIL income estimated for the following financial year
based on committed schemes.
Infrastructure and service providers contacted to invite updates on
existing schemes or submission of new schemes for inclusion on the IDS.
May / June / Assessment of schemes on the IDS to prepare a shortlist of projects
22

Page 1366

July

appropriate to receive CIL funding in following financial year.

July / August

Members invited to comment on the shortlist
and assessments.
Draft CFP finalised and presented to CMT
alongside updated IDS.

September

Draft CFP and updated IDS presented to
Cabinet for agreement for public consultation
for those schemes under the financial cap of
£100,000

September / 4 week consultation on IDS and draft CFP.
October
Consideration of the Council’s annual capital
spending programme review period to help
Schemes can be taken
identify cross funding opportunities.
forward to Cabinet at any
time, as appropriate
October /
Consider consultation feedback and refine IDS
November
and CFP if necessary.
November

Final CFP and IDS presented to Cabinet for
approval to spend identified CIL funds

December

Infrastructure Funding Statement

January /
February /
March

Successful projects notified and agreements
prepared.

April

Implementation and financing of approved
schemes can commence

Following approval of monies
6.25

Where projects are being delivered by external parties, that provider will be required
to sign an agreement with the Council, confirming how the CIL monies must be used,
any timeframes, and agree that any unspent or unused funds will be returned to the
Council.

6.26

Where projects are being delivered by the Borough or County Council, that provider
will be required to provide full details of costs and delivery timescales, and seek
approval from officers before commencing the project.

23

Page 1367

Publicity
6.27

The Government are keen to ensure that the CIL process is transparent and that
communities understand the benefits that are being delivered as a result of CIL
monies. Subsequently, recipients of CIL monies will be encouraged to ensure that
any project materials, for example promotional boardings erected on site as the
project is delivered, make clear that the project is, at least in part, being funded by
Borough Council CIL monies.

24

Page 1368

7.0

PAYMENTS IN KIND

7.1

The CIL regulations allow, in certain circumstances, for the Council to accept land
and/or infrastructure to be provided, instead of money, in order to satisfy all or part
of the charge arising from the levy. This may be appropriate where the Council has
already planned to invest CIL receipts in a project as there may be time, cost and
efficiency benefits in accepting completed infrastructure from the party liable for
payment of the levy.

7.2

Although payment in kind is subject to a number of conditions and is at the
discretion of the Council, where these are accepted, for the purposes of the
neighbourhood portion, the equivalent value must still be passed to the relevant
local council in cash. Therefore, accepting payments in kind has a number of financial
implications which must be considered.

7.3

Any Payments in Kind policy will need to consider how land and / or infrastructure
which is transferred into the ownership of the Council is included on the Council’s
Asset Register, any land searches necessary before the Council take ownership, any
necessary legal agreements relating to how the Council can dispose of it in the future
and any issues over the liability for maintaining the land and / or infrastructure.

7.4

Ultimately, there are two types of payment in kind: a land payment or an
infrastructure payment.
Land Payments

7.5

The Council may choose to accept a land payment by entering into an agreement to
accept a piece of land equivalent to the value of part or all of a party’s CIL liability.
The Council would also need to be satisfied that the land in question is suitable and
necessary to help deliver all or part of a piece of infrastructure that is consistent with
the infrastructure types and projects on the Regulation 123 list.

7.6

Regulations 73 and 74 govern the process of land payments and a land agreement
must be entered into before development commences. Payment in kind and land
payments can only be accepted where:




7.7

the chargeable amount in respect of the chargeable development exceeds
£50,000;
where the land is acquired by the Council or a nominee of the Council; and
the person from whom the land is acquired has assumed liability for the CIL
payment.

The agreement cannot form part of a S106 planning obligation and must comply with
all the relevant conditions set out in regulation 73 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended) relating to the purpose of acquisition and the valuation process.

25

Page 1369

Infrastructure Payments
7.8

Charging authorities may also enter into agreements to receive a piece of newly
developed infrastructure as payment. Where a charging authority chooses to adopt a
policy of accepting these infrastructure payments, they must publish a policy
document which sets out the conditions attached to such payments in detail.

7.9

This policy document will confirm that the authority will accept infrastructure
payments and set out the infrastructure projects, or types of infrastructure, they will
consider accepting as payment. This document will refer to the Council’s Regulation
123 list and the infrastructure provided must be identified to support development
within the borough.

7.10

As with land payments, infrastructure payments are subject to a number of
conditions set out in regulations 73, 73A, 73B and 74 and the infrastructure provided
must not be infrastructure that would be necessary to make the development
acceptable in planning terms, i.e. the type of measures that may be site specific and
would usually form part of a Section 106 obligation under the CIL regulations.

26

Page 1370

8.0

MONITORING & REPORTING
Infrastructure Funding Statement (Borough Council)

8.1

The CIL Regulations require the Council to publish annual reports (for the previous
financial year) detailing received and anticipated receipts and expenditure. In
accordance with the CIL Regulation amendments in September 2019, this must be
reported through an Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS), with replaces both the
former Regulation 123 list and Annual Reports. The IFS must detail monies relating
to both the Council’s Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 obligations.

8.2

Following the removal of CIL Regulation 123, which had required Councils to set out
a list of those infrastructure types or projects which they intended to fund through
CIL and had imposed pooling restrictions on S106 obligations, Council’s must also
now use the Infrastructure Funding Statement to identify infrastructure needs, the
total cost of the infrastructure, anticipate funding from developer contributions, and
the choices the authority has made about how these contributions will be used.
When preparing an IFS, the Council should consider known and expected
infrastructure costs taking into account other possible sources of funding to meet
those costs, which will help identify and evidence the infrastructure funding gap in
anticipation of future reviews of both the Local Plan and the CIL Charging Schedule.

8.3

Authorities can also pool funding from different sources to fund the same
infrastructure, providing that they set out in their IFS which infrastructure they
expect to fund through the levy and which infrastructure they expect to fund
through planning obligations. This enables CIL and S106 receipts to be used on the
same items of infrastructure, for example a planning obligation to deliver a new
school on a strategic site can be supported with additional CIL funds.

8.4

The Council’s first IFS must be published by 31 December 2020. As it should set out
the infrastructure items that the Council intend to fund in the following financial
year, officers recommend that the consultation is undertaken in
September/October, with responses informing the recommendations to Cabinet, for
a final decision in November. This enables the IFS, each December, to report those
infrastructure items to be funded through CIL in the following financial year, aiding
public transparency.
County Councils

8.5

County Councils must also publish an IFS for their receipts and expenditure. The
Borough Council will need to ensure the reports align.

Annual reports (Parish Councils)
8.6

Parish Councils are advised to work closely with the Council to agree priorities for
spending their neighbourhood funding, and to enable this to be reflected in the
27

Page 1371

Council’s Infrastructure Funding Statement. However, it is up to Parish Councils to
decide how they spend their funds. Where a neighbourhood plan has been made, it
should be used to identify infrastructure priorities.
8.7

Regulation 62A of the CIL regulations 2010 (as amended) requires local councils
(Parish Council) to monitor and report how the neighbourhood portion of the CIL
funds have been spent on an annual basis.

8.8

This reporting must include:







How much CIL has been collected;
How much of that money has been spent;
The items of infrastructure on which it has been spent;
The amount of expenditure on each item of infrastructure;
The details of any CIL funds recovered by the Council; and
The amount of CIL retained at the end of the reported year

8.9

The local council is required to publish this report on its website or, where the local
council does not have a website, the website of the Borough Council. A copy of the
report must be sent to the Borough Council by 31st December following the reported
year.

8.10

Where a local council does not have the capability to carry out such monitoring and
reporting, the Borough Council may be able to assist subject to negotiation and an
administrative charge.

8.11

Where there is no local council, and the Borough Council determine how the local
monies should be spent, then the Borough Council will prepare the annual report
and publish it on the Council website.
Failure to spend receipts, or spend on appropriate infrastructure

8.12

In accordance with Regulation 59E, the Council can request that local councils (i.e.
parish councils) who have i) not spent CIL monies within 5 years of their receipt
and/or ii) not spent them appropriately on infrastructure projects, must pay back
their unspent, or misspent CIL monies so that the Council can use the funds to
deliver necessary infrastructure. The Council will therefore use parish council
monitoring reports to review the use of funds by local councils and determine
whether any requests for the return of neighbourhood monies should be made.

8.13

The Council are aware that in some cases, particularly in areas that have large
development sites paying CIL instalments over several years, local councils may
identify costlier infrastructure projects that require the accumulation of CIL receipts
extending across a period of more than five years. The Council will therefore, on a
case-by-case basis, use legal agreements to enable local councils to retain monies
beyond the five year period, where a clear project(s) has been identified and can be
shown to be deliverable in the near future.
28

Page 1372

9.0

Summary of differences between the S106 and CIL processes

Collected from

S106
Site-specific needs identified
through a planning application

CIL
Developments that meet the
trigger for CIL

Calculated through

Obligations guidance

CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended)

Collected for

Specific POS schemes
Specific transport schemes
Education
Affordable housing

Public open space
Sports facilities
Green infrastructure
Transport and highways
Public realm
Community facilities

Used

In relation to a specific site

Across the Borough

Payment due

Various triggers

Following commencement

Projects assessed through

Officer working groups

CIL Funding Programme

Public consultation
required

No

Yes

Projects approved by

Delegated authority;
or
Cabinet

Cabinet

Dependent on use and value
Receipts and expenditure
reported through

Infrastructure Funding
Statement

Infrastructure Funding
Statement

29

Page 1373

APPENDIX 1- NEIGHBOURHOOD PORTION PROTOCOL
Process for Administrating and Spending the Neighbourhood Portion of CIL Receipts
CIL regulations require that at least 15% of the CIL receipts collected should be passed to
the local community through the Parish or Town Council, capped at £100 per council tax
dwelling within the local area (usually the parish where the development has taken place)
per year. This figure rises to 25%, without cap, where the CIL chargeable development is
within an area covered by an adopted Neighbourhood Plan. The neighbourhood portion of
CIL receipts will be passed to the Parish Councils twice a year – in April and October.
Where no Parish Council exists (Ormskirk, Skelmersdale and Bispham), receipts will be
retained by the Borough Council who will undertake consultation to determine the most
appropriate projects to spend the money on. The Statement of Community Involvement will
set out more detailed information on how and when community consultation will occur.
In accordance with CIL Regulation 59C, CIL neighbourhood funds must be spent on:
a) the provision, improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of
infrastructure;
b) anything else that is concerned with addressing the demands that development
places on an area

Identifying priorities
To make clear what they expect CIL money to be spent on, Parish Councils are encouraged
to publish a list of the infrastructure projects which the community sees as priorities for
delivering and would like to see provided with CIL funds. This is not a legislative
requirement, but consulting the community and listing priorities in this way provides clarity
and reduces uncertainty as to what the neighbourhood portion of CIL receipts in any given
parish will be spent on. Where possible, this list should have regard to wider priorities as set
out within the Council’s Infrastructure Funding Statement.

Reporting
In accordance with CIL Regulation 62, Parish Councils must report annually on their CIL
receipts and expenditure and make this publically available.

30

Page 1374

Recovery of misspent, or unspent, receipts
The Borough Council retains the right to recover CIL receipts that have not been spent on
appropriate projects, or where monies have not been spent within 5 years of receipt by the
Parish Council.
Where monies are required to be paid back, the Borough Council will serve a notice on the
Parish Council stating the amount of CIL receipts to be repaid, the reasons for why those
monies should be repaid, and the date repayment should be made by.
A Parish Council can notify the charging authority (the Borough Council), in writing, that
they do not want to receive all, or some, of the CIL receipts due to them. The Borough
Council will then retain those CIL receipts and allocate them to schemes they identify.
A Parish Council may do this where community priorities for infrastructure are the same as
those of the local authority (such as they are agreed a new school or road is needed) or they
are unable to identify local infrastructure projects on which to spend the neighbourhood
portion.
A Parish Council Guidance Note provides more detail for Parish Councils on the
neighbourhood portion of CIL and is available on the Council’s website.

Protocols for distribution of the Neighbourhood portion
The following protocols apply for receipt and expenditure of CIL monies in relation to the
neighbourhood proportion.

In Parish Council areas:
Stage

Action

1

CIL Receipts collected by Borough Council.

2

In April and October of each year, the Borough Council will write to each
Parish Council confirming the portion due to them (from receipts over the
previous six-month period). Parish Councils will also be invited to confirm
whether they would prefer the Borough Council to retain all or part of the
neighbourhood portion to be spent on strategic infrastructure projects.

3

Relevant amounts will be passed to Parish Councils in April and October.

4

Parish Council should identify the most appropriate ways of using the
neighbourhood portion on local infrastructure, ideally through
engagement with the local community.

31

Page 1375

5

Parish Councils are responsible for the identification and delivery of
schemes in their area.

6

Parish Council produce an annual report detailing CIL receipts. Report
must include:






Total receipts for reported year
Total expenditure for reported year
Summary of CIL expenditure including projects and amounts spent
Details of any notices received (requesting return of monies)
Total receipts retained at end of reported year (i.e. unspent) by
returned year, and previous years

The Parish Council must publish the report on its website or provide a
copy to the Borough Council to publish on the Council website. It must
also send a hard copy of the report to the charging authority (Borough
Council). Reports must be received no later than 31 December following
the reporting year.
7

The Borough Council will use the Parish Council reports to monitor i) that
CIL monies are being spent on appropriate infrastructure items and ii)
that CIL monies are being spent within appropriate time periods. Where
monies are incorrectly spent, or not spent, the Borough Council may ask
for CIL monies to be returned to allow the Council to spend them on
behalf of the Parish Council.

In non-Parish Council areas:
Only Skelmersdale and Ormskirk are unparished and Bispham does not have a Parish
Council. In these locations the Council will retain the neighbourhood portion of the CIL
receipts and will engage with the local community as to how the neighbourhood funding
should be spent. The Borough Council will then be responsible for reporting CIL receipts and
expenditure on an annual basis.
Working with infrastructure delivery partners, the Council will set out those schemes which
it considers to be appropriate and deliverable, and establish the priorities. These schemes
will then be put to the community for consultation through the annual CIL Funding
Programme. Proportionate consultation and publicity will be undertaken through a range of
methods as detailed in the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement. People will be
able to state whether they agree, or disagree, with the schemes and priorities and are
welcome to suggest alternative projects. The results of consultation will then be fed into
final officer recommendations and put before Cabinet for a final decision on the most
appropriate schemes to implement. The amount of available CIL receipts must be
considered when determining the most appropriate projects.

32

Page 1376

Non-Parished areas
Stage
1

Action
CIL Receipts collected by Borough Council

2

15% of receipts collected in non-parished area to be retained by
Borough Council

3

Schemes shortlisted for the CIL Funding Programme. Shortlisted
schemes in non-parished areas, with available Neighbourhood CIL
receipts, will be prioritised to use local, rather than strategic,
monies.

4

Cabinet approval to publically consult on any shortlisted schemes
as part of the wider annual CIL Funding Programme consultation.
Comments will only be considered by those people who are
Ormskirk residents or businesses, due to the nature of the funding.
Comments received will be considered and used to prepare final
recommendations for the Funding Programme. Members will have
the final decision in November Cabinet.

5

Borough Council will produce an annual report detailing CIL
receipts and publish the report on its website.

33

Page 1377

APPENDIX 2 – STRATEGIC CIL FUNDING PROTOCOL
As Table on p.21
Stage Date

Schemes costing less than £100,000

Schemes costing more
than £100,000
March / April Close of financial year, and CIL receipts and expenditure for that period
confirmed. Projected CIL income estimated for the following financial year
based on committed schemes.
Infrastructure and service providers contacted to invite updates on
existing schemes or submission of new schemes for inclusion on the IDS.
May / June / Assessment of schemes on the IDS to prepare a shortlist of projects
July
appropriate to receive CIL funding in following financial year.
July / August

Members invited to comment on the shortlist
and assessments.
Draft CFP finalised and presented to CMT
alongside updated IDS.

September

Draft CFP and updated IDS presented to
Cabinet for agreement for public consultation
for those schemes under the financial cap of
£100,000

September / 4 week consultation on IDS and draft CFP.
October
Consideration of the Council’s annual capital
spending programme review period to help
Schemes can be taken
identify cross funding opportunities.
forward to Cabinet at any
time, as appropriate
October /
Consider consultation feedback and refine IDS
November
and CFP if necessary.
November

Final CFP and IDS presented to Cabinet for
approval to spend identified CIL funds

December

Infrastructure Funding Statement

January /
February /
March

Successful projects notified and agreements
prepared.

April

Implementation and financing of approved
schemes can commence

34

Page 1378

APPENDIX 3 – PLANNING CONTRIBUTIONS PROTOCOL
Set out below are three protocols for engagement between Infrastructure Providers (for
example Lancashire County Council (LCC)) and West Lancashire Borough Council (WLBC) to
manage the use of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) contributions and historic and new
Section 106 (S106) obligations.
Process for agreeing the expenditure of new S106 Obligations to be agreed alongside CIL
regime
Stage

Action

1

Pre-application - Discussion with applicant to establish likely S106
contributions in line with Planning Policy requirements and CIL
Regulations. Engage relevant Infrastructure Provider.

2

Planning Application – Negotiation with the applicant for any S106
obligations required for infrastructure improvement, that are outside
the responsibilities of CIL.

3

Planning Decision - Planning Committee consider key issues and grant
consent subject to signing of S106 obligation. Legal costs will be payable
by the applicant before completion of the S106 obligation.

4

Obligation Completed – Subject to further negotiation, the obligation is
signed by the applicant and planning permission granted by the Director
of Place and Community in consultation with the relevant Portfolio
Holder for Planning.

5

Funds collected – following commencement of development or any
other trigger such as completion of a given percentage of the
development.

6

Correspondence sent, 1-2 times a year, to all Borough Councillors and
Parish Councils reminding them of available receipts and inviting them
to identify projects for the use of S106 receipts, (having regard to the
restrictions on the use of S106 monies).
Formal submission of schemes/bid proposals by Parish Council or Ward
members to the Borough Council OR schemes developed by Borough or
County Council officers where no proposal has been submitted. Schemes
circulated to the Officer working group.

7

Officer Working Group – Officers from WLBC and/or LCC Transport and
Highways meet to discuss bids received and update on the progress of
previously approved projects. Group consider proposals in line with the
scope of the legal obligation, and opportunities for match or alternative
35

Page 1379

8

funding.
Schemes approved by the officer working group are referred for
authorisation as follows:


Specific scheme under value of £10,000: Delegated to Director of
Place and Community in conjunction with the Portfolio Holder



Specific scheme equal to, or above value of, £10,000: Delegated
to Cabinet



Non-specific scheme below £10,000: Delegated to Cabinet



Non-specific scheme equal to, or above value of, £10,000:
Delegated to Cabinet

9

Scheme Design - Infrastructure Providers and WLBC officers work up
scheme and establish costs and schedule for works.

10

Schemes approved, purchase orders raised and invoices issued. Payment
regime agreed with Infrastructure Provider or contract signed for
Infrastructure Provider to deliver scheme.

36

Page 1380

APPENDIX 4 - AFFORDABLE HOUSING SECTION 106 PROTOCOL
Set out below is a high level Protocol for how the Borough Council will manage the Section
106 process (S106) in respect of Affordable Housing, from the initial discussions with
developers, through to the delivery of the housing. This will make it clear where officers and
Members will be involved in the process.
Affordable Housing
1. Pre-application – Discussion with applicant to establish likely S106 requirements.
2. Planning Application – Affordable housing requirement established in line with the
Planning Policy requirements.
3. Negotiation – Planning Case Officer negotiates with developer on the need for affordable
housing including matters relating to property type and number, tenure type, phasing and
location requirements for its delivery, delivery mechanisms, and relevant affordable housing
conditions with advise from the Housing Strategy & Development Programme Manager.
Liaison will also take place with Planning in respect of viability issues that may affect the
amount/mix based on agreed Council policy. In the case of an outline application
negotiations will only normally take place in relation to the percentage and tenure mix of
units to be affordable, with further discussions on other matters at the reserved matters
stage. The outline and reserved matters S106 obligations will both be dealt with in the same
way as set out in this Protocol.
4. Planning Decision – In the event that Planning Committee support the proposed
development then the grant of permission will be subject to the signing of a S106 obligation.
Legal costs will be payable by the applicant before completion of the S106 obligation.
5. Obligation Completed – Subject to further negotiation, the obligation is signed by the
applicant and planning permission granted by the Director of Place and Community in
consultation with Chairman or Vice Chairman of Planning Committee.
6. Member Briefing – Update Report to inform the Affordable Housing Cabinet Panel, which
includes the Housing Portfolio Holder, regarding affordable housing contribution agreed.

37

Page 1381

Agenda Item 6b
CABINET: 9 JUNE 2020
CORPORATE
&
ENVIRONMENTAL
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:
11 JUNE 2020

Report of:

Corporate Director of Transformation and Resources

Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor I Moran
Contact for further information: Ms A Grimes (Extn. 3211)
(E-mail: alison.grimes@westlancs.gov.uk)
SUBJECT: QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Q4 2019/20)
Wards affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To present performance monitoring data for the quarter ended 31 March 2020.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

2.1

That the Council’s performance against the indicator set for the quarter ended 31
March 2020 be noted.

2.2

That the call-in procedure is not appropriate for this item as the report will be
submitted to the meeting of the Corporate & Environmental Overview & Scrutiny
Committee on 11 June 2020.

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CORPORATE & ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

3.1

That the Council’s performance against the indicator set for the quarter ended 31
March 2020 be noted.

4.0

CURRENT POSITION

4.1

Members are referred to Appendix A of this report detailing the quarterly
performance data for key performance indicators. The performance information

Page 1383

aims to help demonstrate performance against the corporate priorities as well as
providing some service-specific information.
4.2

The suite of indicators for 2019/20 includes the quarterly indicators provided in
Appendix A.

4.3

There are 47 items reported. Seven of these are data only. Of the 40 PIs with
targets reported:
• 26 indicators met or exceeded target
• 5 indicators narrowly missed target
• 9 were 5% or more off target.
A direct comparison with the same quarter of the previous year is not possible
due to changes in indicators and targets, however performance in Q4 2018/19
gave 22 (from 33) performance indicators on or above target at that time.

4.4 Within Environmental Services, data agreed for reporting in 2019/20 has had to
be revised in line with access to collection mechanisms available. The proposed
PIs were based on the understanding at the time of what would be reported
through new external benchmarking reports and Service Now. The revisions are
close to the original expectations as explained for the Q2 report.
4.5

Performance plans prepared by service managers are already in place for those
indicators where performance falls short of the target by 5% or more for this
quarter. These plans provide the narrative behind the outturn. Progress on
actions from previous Performance Plans where indicators are no longer red are
provided in Appendix C.

4.6

Although the purpose of this report is to comment on quarterly information, where
available, a brief reference on draft annual performance is also given in Appendix
A.

4.7

This quarterly suite of indicators and targets was agreed as part of a suite of
indicators by Cabinet in March 2019. Targets for 2019/20 were finalised through
Cabinet following consideration of comments from the Executive Overview and
Scrutiny Committee. Performance against the full corporate suite of indicators
2019/20 will be reported within the Council Plan Annual Report.

5.0

FUTURE PERFORMANCE REPORTING

5.1

As referred to in Item 6f Council Plan and Corporate Performance Review in
March's Cabinet papers, corporate performance information is being reviewed.
This has previously been agreed as an Annual Suite with key indicators reported
quarterly to Members following the same format and process that was in place for
the now discontinued national reporting requirements. Members receive largely
operational information on particular outputs from a service. A revised reporting
suite will provide Members with key information more relevant to the delivery of
the Council Plan. It was agreed that to ensure there is no gap in performance
information for Members the existing Annual Suite of performance indicators and

Page 1384

key quarterly indicators will be retained and reported on following current practice
until at least October 2020.
6.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACTS

6.1

The information set out in this report aims to help the Council improve service
performance. There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this
report/update and, in particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder.

7.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are no direct financial or resource implications arising from this report.

8.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

This item is for information only and makes no recommendations. It therefore
does not require a formal risk assessment and no changes have been made to
risk registers as a result of this report. Monitoring and managing performance
information data helps the authority to ensure it is achieving its corporate
priorities and key objectives and reduces the risk of not doing so.

9.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

9.1

There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.
Equality Impact Assessment
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees,
elected members and / or stakeholders. Therefore no Equality Impact Assessment is
required.
Appendices
Appendix A: Quarterly Performance Indicators for Q4 January-March 2019/20
Appendix B: Performance Plans
Appendix C: Actions from Previous Performance Plans

Page 1385

APPENDIX A: QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Icon key
PI Status
OK (within 0.01%) or exceeded

Performance against same quarter previous year
Improved

26

Warning (within 5%)

5

Worse

Alert (by 5% or more)

9

No change

PIs awaiting data

0

Data only

7

Awaiting data for comparison

'Data only' awaiting data

0

Total number of indicators/data items

Shared Services

/

9
12
8

Comparison not available

18
0
47

1

Page 1386

PI Code & Short Name

Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

Current
Target

Comments

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

99%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 99% was exceeded

ICT2 Minor Business
Disruption (P3)

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

100%

99%

100%

99%

97%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 97% was exceeded

ICT3 Major Business
Disruption (P2)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

98%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 98% was exceeded

99%

99%

99%

99%

99%

100%

100%

100%

100%

98%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 98% was exceeded

97.10%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 97.10% was narrowly missed.
WLBC retains around 13% of this
collection.

24.5%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 24.5% was narrowly missed.

97.20%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 97.20% was exceeded.
WLBC retains around 40% of this

ICT1 Severe Business
Disruption (Priority 1)

ICT4 Minor Disruption
(P4)
R1 % of Council Tax
collected

96.51% 29.22% 56.10% 83.81% 96.46% 28.96% 56.04% 83.52% 96.29%

R2 % council tax previous
26.78%
years arrears collected
R3 % of Business Rates
Collected (NNDR)

11.1%

17.14% 21.85% 25.88%

8.1%

13.74% 20.02% 23.68%

98.18% 28.18% 55.08% 81.05% 98.22% 29.65% 56.14% 80.98% 98.02%

Q4 19/20
vs
Q4 18/19

Quarter
Status

PI Code & Short Name

Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Current
Target

Comments

Q4 19/20
vs
Q4 18/19

Quarter
Status

Q4 19/20
vs
Q4 18/19

Quarter
Status

collection.
R4 Sundry Debtors % of
revenue collected against
debt raised
B1 Time taken to process
Housing Benefit/Council
Tax Support new claims
and change events
B2 Overpayment
Recovery of Housing
Benefit overpayments
(payments received)

95.78% 38.01% 83.96% 87.41% 96.95% 51.95% 75.49% 89.93% 94.36%

5.63

6.98

6.05

6.41

6.16

6.11

7.37

7.79

7.73

89.1%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 89.10% was exceeded.

12.00

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 12 days was exceeded

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
£294,695 £87,070 £178,006 £270,313 £370,939 £104,163 £186,937 £282,724 £377,501 £195,000
of £195K was exceeded

Page 1387

Growth & Development Services

PI Code & Short Name

Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

Current
Target

Comments

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

NI 157a Processing of
planning applications:
Major applications

87.50%

100%

100%

88.89%

100%

100%

92.86%

100%

85.71%

Annual performance of 93.1% exceeded
75.00% annual target of 75%.

NI 157b Processing of
planning applications:
Minor applications

89.09% 90.77% 92.31% 90.16% 86.79% 84.48% 93.55% 86.27% 84.91%

Annual performance of 87.5% exceeded
80.00% annual target of 80%.

NI 157c Processing of
planning applications:
Other applications

96.15% 96.55% 93.84% 95.27% 90.68% 93.62% 90.78% 87.97% 92.50%

Annual performance of 91.21% exceeded
85.00% annual target of 85%.

Corporate & Customer Services

PI Code & Short Name

Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
Value

WL132 FTE working days
lost due to sickness
absence per average FTE

Value

Value

Value

N/A - PI not developed at this time

Value

2.38

Value

2.95

Value

2.55

Value

2.59

2.02

Comments
Annual performance of 10.46 missed
annual target of 8.08
Performance Plan attached at Appendix
B1.

98.13% 98.30% 98.14% 97.85% 98.59% 98.99% 98.49% 97.73% 98.21%

98.75%

Page 1388

BV8 % invoices paid on
time

Value

Current
Target

Annual outturn of 98.34%, relating to
just under 46 thousand invoices,
narrowly missed target of 98.75%.
A new electronic payment process was
put in place to meet remote working
needs. This will be refined and should
result in faster processing times going
forward.
Quarter data relates to payment of nearly
12,000 invoices.

WL85a Website: no. visits 152,154 193,813 143,749 152,659 167,748 202,891 115,041 2 144,440 186,128
WL85b Website: no.
online forms submitted

3,587

5,772

4,150

3,429

2,190

10,996

7,195

4,239

4,150

WL85c Website: No. of
payments processed
online

15,560

29,206

14,393

12,943

13,065

21,067

17,820

14,092

12,011
Annual outturn of 85.9% narrowly missed
target of 88.0%.

WL90 % of Contact
Centre calls answered

71.9%

61.9%

89.3%

87.7%

61.6%

76.1%

84.6%

92.2%

93.4%

88.0%

There were 115,142 calls in 2019/20,
compared with 130,993 calls in 2018/19.
Performance Plan in progress, see
Appendix C.

WL108 Average answered
waiting time for callers to
the contact centre
(seconds)

214

288

100

117

326

185

141

82

74

145

Annual outturn of 121s (2m 1s) exceeded
target of 145s (2m 25s).

Q4 19/20
vs
Q4 18/19

/

Quarter
Status

Quarter figures relate to 26,914 calls into
the contact centre. (32,811 Q4 18/19)
Performance Plan in progress, see
Appendix C.
WL130 No. Service Now
Customer Accounts

N/A - PI not developed at this time

10,085

20,794

22,861

24,734

/
Annual outturn exceeded target of a
growth of 5% per quarter.

WL131 No. Social Media
Followers (WLBC FB,
Twitter)

N/A - PI not developed at this time

7,167

7,660

8,115

9,567

WL143 % of external calls
to back office answered

N/A - PI not developed at this time

85%

85%

84%

82%

8,521

Data represents 5815 Twitter;
2912 Facebook; 840 Homefinder
Facebook

/

Relates to over 54,000 attempted calls
into back office (up 5% on previous
quarter)

/

Comments

Q4 19/20
vs
Q4 18/19

Page 1389

Housing & Regulatory Services

PI Code & Short Name

Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Current
Target

Annual performance of 97.15% narrowly
missed target 98.00%.

HS1 % Housing repairs
completed in timescale

99.10% 96.32% 96.51% 95.23% 92.80% 97.95% 97.69% 97.01% 95.96%

HS27 % of properties
with a valid Landlord Gas
Safety Record (homes
and buildings) 3

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

HS28 % of properties
with a valid Electrical
Installation Condition
Report (homes and
buildings) 3

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

93.4%

96.0%

HS29 % non-domestic
that require an asbestos

N/A - PI not
developed at this

92.4%

99.7%

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

98.8%

95.1%

100.0% 100.0%

95.4%

99.4%

97.2%

97.6%

100.0% 100.0%

98.00%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

The contractor Wates Living Space began
delivering the responsive maintenance
service from April 2020.
Q4 outturn is year to date; annual
performance of 100.0% met target of
100.0%.
Q4 outturn is year to date; annual
performance of 97.6% narrowly missed
target 100.0%.

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual
performance of 100.0% met target of

Quarter
Status

PI Code & Short Name

Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
Value

Value

management survey/reinspection3

time

HS30 % of non-domestic
properties with fire risk
assessment in place3

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

HS31 % of properties
covered by water hygiene
risk assessment (homes
and buildings) 3

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

Page 1390

TS1a Rent collected from
current and former
tenants as a % of rent
owed (excluding arrears
b/f).
TS11 % of rent loss
through dwellings being
vacant

Value

Value

Value

1.25%

Value

Value

Value

Comments

Q4 19/20
vs
Q4 18/19

Quarter
Status

100.0%.

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

N/A - PI not developed at this time

1.59%

Value

Current
Target

1.1%

1.01%

0.94%

100.0%

100.0%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual
performance of 100.0% met target of
100.0%.
Q4 outturn is year to date; annual
performance of 100.0% met target of
100.0%.

104.53

100.55

102.53

101.74

100.04

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 100.04% was exceeded.

0.7%

0.72%

0.79%

0.87%

0.99%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 0.99% was exceeded.

/

Environmental Services

PI Code & Short Name

Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
Value

ES01 No. grass cuts
undertaken on the
highway between AprilOctober

ES02 No. grass cuts
undertaken in Sheltered
Accommodation between
April-October

Value

Value

Value

Value

N/A - PI not developed at this time

Value

3

Value

6

Value

7

Value

7

Current
Target

8

Comments
There is a cumulative total 8 cut target
over the season from April – October.
Annual outturn of 7 did not achieve
target of 8.

Q4 19/20
vs
Q4 18/19

/

Performance Plan for ES01/02 attached
at Appendix B2.

N/A - PI not developed at this time

3

7

9

9

10

There is a cumulative total 10 cut target
over the season from April – October.
Annual outturn of 9 did not achieve
target of 10 with the exception of
Crosshall Court which received 10 cuts

/

Quarter
Status

PI Code & Short Name

Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Current
Target

Comments

Q4 19/20
vs
Q4 18/19

Performance Plan for ES01/02 attached
at Appendix B2.
ES04 % locations
inspected falling into
categories A/B - Litter
(cumulative)

N/A - PI not developed at this time

ES06 % locations
inspected falling into
categories A/B - Dog
Fouling (cumulative)

N/A - PI not developed at this time

Page 1391

ES07 % locations
inspected falling into
categories C/D Overflowing Litter Bins
(cumulative)

98.31% 98.74% 98.99% 99.15%

85.00%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 85.00% was exceeded.

/

Data is not provided quarterly by APSE.
100%

100%

100%

100%

85.00%

As above

/

Data is not provided quarterly by APSE.
N/A - PI not developed at this time

08.70% 12.50% 12.12% 10.53%

10.00%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 10.00% was not met.

/

Performance Plan attached at Appendix
B3.

ES08 % locations
inspected falling into
categories A/B - grounds
maintenance (includes
grass and shrubbery)
(cumulative) 7

N/A - PI not developed at this time

ES11 % locations
inspected falling into
categories C/D - Detritus
(cumulative) 8

N/A - PI not developed at this time

N/A

N/A

N/A

92.53%

Quarter data previously unavailable
whilst APSE assessed profiling data of the
borough to determine our benchmarking
85.00%
group. Full data available for 2020/21

/

Q4 outturn is year to date; cumulative
annual target of 85.00% was exceeded.

04.41% 05.30% 04.94%

4.16%

15.00%

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual target
of 15.00% was exceeded.

/

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual
outturn of 84 did not meet target of 50.
ES14 Average of missed
bins per fortnight
(recycling / green)

N/A - PI not developed at this time

1316

53

104

102

50

The target of 50 is based on introduction
of the route optimisation work. There is
no performance plan as the action is to
roll out route optimisation from
November 2019, so impacts unlikely to
be reflected until Q4.

/

Quarter
Status

PI Code & Short Name

Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Current
Target

Comments

Q4 19/20
vs
Q4 18/19

Performance Plan for ES14-ES17
attached at Appendix B4.
N/A - PI not developed at this time

ES16 Average of missed
bins per fortnight (garden
waste / brown)

N/A - PI not developed at this time

ES17 Average of missed
bins per fortnight (refuse
/ grey)

N/A - PI not developed at this time

ES18 No. flytip incidents
reported9

N/A - PI not developed at this time

Page 1392

ES15 Average of missed
bins per fortnight
(recycling / blue)

NI 191 Kerbside residual
household waste per
household (Kg) 4

1316

49

123

122

50

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual
outturn of 96 did not meet target of 50.

/

Performance comment as above
41

55

75

67

50

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual
outturn of 65 did not meet target of 50.

/

Performance comment as above
66

58

136

172

50

Q4 outturn is year to date; annual
outturn of 99 did not meet target of 50.

/

Performance comment as above

124.765

128.66

126.15

118.115

120.55

338

122.11

345

118.91

263

120.61

338

Data item reflecting the flytip data
available from ServiceNow.

124.96

125

Q3/Q4 data supplied by LCC but still
awaiting clearance through their formal
verification process. Annual performance
of 541.32kg (based on estimated/nonverified figures) did not meet annual
target of 500kg.

NI 192 Percentage of
kerbside household waste
40.52%5 34.68%5 46.57% 44.84%5 43.00% 40.21% 49.31%
sent for reuse, recycling
and composting4

45.00%

41.2%

50.00%

Q3/Q4 data supplied by LCC but still
awaiting clearance through their formal
verification process. Annual performance
of 41.39% (based on estimated/nonverified figures) did not meet annual
target of 50%
Performance Plan attached at Appendix
B5.

WL122 % Vehicle
Operator Licence
Inspections Carried Out
within 6 Weeks

100%

100%

100%

Annual performance of 100% met
annual target of 100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

98.72%

/

Quarter
Status

Wellbeing & Leisure Services

PI Code & Short Name

Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
Value

HW01 No. attending
health, wellbeing and
sport activities & courses

Value

Value

Value

Value

N/A - PI not developed at this time

Value

3,712

Value

3,238

Value

2,292

Value

1,892

Current
Target

Comments

Q4 19/20
vs
Q4 18/19

The start of the weight management
programme was delayed due to staff
resource issues. The age range and
health conditions of our main group of
participants for all activities meant that
COVID 19 had direct impact on figures for
this quarter.

/

Quarter
Status

Page 1393

Notes:
1 Managed through LCC/BTLS contract. Contractual targets are annual. Quarter targets are provided as a gauge for performance only. ICT data
and RBS data reflect progress to year end.
2 WL85a Website: no. visits Q2 19/20 - Due to a change in data collection technology data collected between 21 August to 10 October is not
complete. The issue has been resolved.
3 Compliance data. New for Q2 2018/19, data was reported as at end of October.
4 NI191-192: Data is provided to WLBC with a time lag due to time involved to confirm/validate final figures. The quarter data reported reflects an
outturn verified within the quarter, rather than an outturn produced within the quarter. The annual outturn will reflect the data produced within the
April-March period.
5 NI191/192: data restated from published due to admin error, rectified January 2019
6 ES14 & 15: Q1 19/20 reflected outturn for both blue and green bins. The data is split for Q2 19/20 onwards..
7ES07 % locations into categories C/D - Overflowing Litter Bins: This was originally planned with a target of 90% for 'acceptable' sites.
Benchmakring report uses 'unacceptable', so target reversed to 10% for 'unacceptable and poor' sites.
8ES11 % locations into categories C/D – Detritus: This was originally planned with a target of 85% for 'acceptable' sites. Benchmakring report
uses 'unacceptable', so target reversed to 15% for 'unacceptable and poor' sites.
9 ES18: No. flytip incidents reported replaced ES12 & ES13 % flytips removed, hazardous and non-hazardous waste
WL133 No. visitors to Chapel Gallery: The Gallery transferred to a third party operator in November. This data will no longer be provided.

APPENDIX B1
PERFORMANCE PLAN
Indicator

WL132 Working Days Lost Due to Sickness Absence

Reasons for not meeting target
The Council’s target for 2019/2020 is to achieve (not more than) 8.08 full time equivalent working days
lost per employee, measured as 2.02 full time equivalent working days lost each quarter. For Quarter 4
the outturn position was 2.59 days.
To help to ensure that sickness absence is being managed effectively the HR Team continue to liaise
more closely with the relevant line managers to monitor and support them in undertaking timely Stage
1 or Stage 2 interviews, as appropriate. Heads of Service are also be updated on a regular basis by
HR on ongoing case management issues.
The HR Team continue to be available to provide training on attendance management to DMTs, as
requested.
In relation to Long Term Sickness Absence, the HR Officers regularly discuss with Line Managers the
actions being taken in regard to each of these cases to ensure appropriate measures are being taken.
COVID-19 had relatively little impact on Q4 outturn. However, systems are in place so that absences
directly related to COVID 19 are considered separately to other reasons for sickness absence to
ensure we still have some comparable sickness data month on month on going that is not skewed by
the virus impact.
Q4 continued to be an unsettling time within the workforce in view of the SORP organisational
restructure and towards the end, the COVID 19 crisis.
This has led to uncertainty for certain people and in some cases, this has resulted in increased
sickness levels. However, the top 5 reasons for sickness absence in March were more physically
related and are noted below:
Musculoskeletal disorders
Injury/fracture
Ear, nose, throat
Gastrointestinal problems
Heart/cardiac/circulatory problems
In addition it should be noted that the Council has an aging workforce and as such, there is an
expectation that this in itself will lead to elevated sickness absence as older workers are more prone to
sickness, injury or operations.
The HR Team continue to work closely with the Wellbeing and Leisure Service to support the Workforce
Wellbeing Action Plan to improve general staff wellbeing and assist in reduced absenteeism. This action
plan has a 3 to 6 and 6 to 12 and 12 months beyond action plan timetable with 21 individual actions that
will be implemented over the next two years. The initial actions associated with the promotion of
wellbeing activities and events, and the launch of Able Futures (in association with the Dept. of Work
and Pensions (DWP)) have already taken place.
The HR Team are currently working with the Head of ICT to produce a staff survey aimed at identifying
the key issues and concerns around staff and managers who find themselves working from home as a
direct result of the COVID 19 Crisis, using mobile devices, and the associated wellbeing and welfare
concerns that they are feeling at this time. The results of this survey will feed in to the development of
an action place to address what is identified and needed to enhance the support measure we already
have in place around mental health support at this time.

Additional commentary
Page 1394

•

Heads of Service will continue to closely monitor sickness levels within their respective service
areas and take appropriate action as necessary in line with the Sickness Absence Policy.
• Managers are required to discuss sickness performance and attendance levels regularly in team
meetings.
• Sickness absence management training was provided in May 2019 and a presentation on stress
management processes given to managers in June 2019 as part of the performance management
plan.
• The Council will continue to focus on providing detailed management information to assist managers
in identifying all short-term cases of sickness absence, which have exceeded the agreed ‘trigger’
levels, together with all on-going long-term cases of sickness absence.
• The HR Team will continue to support the Wellbeing and Leisure Service to deliver the a Workforce
Wellbeing Action Plan
• The HR team will continue to meet with individual Line Managers and Heads of Service, where
appropriate, to provide advice and support to ensure managers have the skills and confidence to
address absence issues appropriately.
• The Council will continue to work closely with the Occupational Health provider (Wellbeing Partners).
• The e-learning system course which is available to support managers to provide more effective
training on sickness management has been promoted and remains available.
•
The HR Team have examined the reasons for absence in more detail and have not identified any
specific trends or possible common links for any hot spot areas. However, this will continue to be
monitored.
Resource Implications
Timely interventions by Managers and pro-active, practical support from the HR Team, together with
Wellbeing Partners will help to maximise attendance levels.
Priority
High
Future Targets
Continue with existing target.

Action Plan

Tasks to be undertaken

Completion Date

To continue to support the Wellbeing and Leisure
Service to deliver the Workforce Wellbeing Action Plan
in line with its timetable.

The next stage of the Action plan is to
deliver its timetable for actions and to
schedule delivery of a number of actions
by July 2020

Produce an Action Plan to address findings around staff
wellbeing from the joint ICT and Staff wellbeing survey.

Page 1395

Completion will be 3 months from the
issue of the survey. Issue is anticipated
before the end of June 2020

APPENDIX B2

PERFORMANCE PLAN
Indicator

ES01: No of grass cuts undertaken on the highway between Apr–Oct
ES02: No of grass cuts undertaken in Sheltered Accommodation between Apr-Oct

Reason(s) for not meeting target
The target has not been achieved for 2019/20 as follows:
•
•

•

It was the first season for the newly created Clean & Green Teams who commenced in
post on 1.4.20 following service reorganisation
The teams were not fully skilled in terms of all kit and equipment as half of the cohort had
historically worked solely within the street cleansing service which had a lower skill set
and even amongst those staff who were within the former grounds maintenance service
there had been lack of investment in terms of upskilling. This resulted in reduced
competency and restricted flexibility for deployment options
2 x Clean & Green Area Managers were new in post, joining the organisation in May and
July 2019 respectively

Additional Commentary and proposed actions to address reasons stated above
•
•

•

The staff are now fully embedded within their new generic roles and have adapted to the
team structure
A considerable volume of training in a range of kit, equipment and weed spraying
qualifications has been undertaken over the year which was a commitment at the outset
of the new Clean & green structure. This has resulted in the upskilling of staff therefore
providing greater flexibility for deployment across the Borough.
Clean & Green Area Managers are stablished within their roles, forming excellent working
relationships with the teams and understanding the needs of the communities through the
neighbourhood delivery model

Resource Implications – None, resources are within budget
Priority – Medium
Future Targets – No proposed change to targets
Action Plan
Tasks to be undertaken

Completion Date

Continue to monitor performance

Weekly

Page 1396

APPENDIX B3

PERFORMANCE PLAN
Indicator

ES07: % of locations inspected falling into categories C/D – Overflowing Litter Bins

Reason(s) for not meeting target
The target has very marginally not been achieved for 2019/20 due to the capacity of a proportion
of the litter bins within the Borough not being fit for purpose
Additional Commentary and proposed actions
A policy for the provision of litter bins has recently been approved.
In addition, funding has been agreed to:
• undertake a trial of innovative compaction bins
• replace poor quality litter bins identified through a condition survey with upgraded designs
with higher volume capacity
• install additional litter bins in areas of high usage if required
• deliver anti-littering campaigns and educational/promotional activities
These projects / work streams will be implemented during 2020/21 and an update provided to the
September Corporate and Environmental Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Resource Implications – None, resources are within budget
Priority – Medium
Future Targets – No proposed change to targets
Action Plan
Tasks to be undertaken

Completion Date

Continue to monitor performance

Monthly

Place order for 53 litter bins to replace those identified June 2020
as category C or D in condition survey (timescale could
be impacted by COVID restrictions for production)
Agree locations with provider for trial of compaction bins July 2020
(timescale could be impacted by COVID restrictions for
installation)
Commence anti-littering campaigns / educational and
promotional activities utilising support materials from August 2020
partner agencies such as Keep Britain Tidy and Hubbub

Page 1397

APPENDIX B4

Indicator

PERFORMANCE PLAN
ES14: Average of missed bins per fortnight (recycling/green)
ES15: Average of missed bins per fortnight (recycling/blue)
ES16: Average of missed bins per fortnight (garden waste/brown)
ES17: Average of missed bins per fortnight (refuse/grey)

Reason(s) for not meeting target
The target has not been achieved for Q4 2019/20 for a number of reasons including the effects of
altered Christmas & New Year collection arrangements which impacts upon January collections,
on-going re-adjustment by staff to the changed collection schedules which had been
implemented in November 2019, an aging fleet which results in regular downtime, use of agency
staff, lack of focus upon performance due to unavailable managerial resource in addition to
human error of operatives on actual collection rounds.
Additional Commentary and proposed actions
In addition to the implementation of new collection schedules in November, this also brought a realignment of operational posts within the organisational structure to deliver those schedules. A
number of operational vacancies were identified within the structure, however, during Q4,
recruitment to those Driver/Team Leader vacancies had not been concluded and reliance upon
agency staff continued.
During Q4, there was considerable long term sickness within the 3 managerial posts within the
service. One manger was LTS for the entire period and departed the organisation through VR in
March 2020, another member of the management team was LTS from Oct 2019, returning in Feb
2020. This added pressure to the 1 remaining member of the team to ensure frontline service
delivery was in place each day and did not enable capacity for detailed performance
management or on-going analysis of the effectiveness of the implementation of Route
Optimisation.
The ineffective management structure was addressed through the SORP process and additional
managerial posts created. The new Waste Services Manager commences in post on 1st June
2020 and immediate focus will be placed upon success of round review and performance
management.
There is considerable vehicle downtime incurred due to an aging fleet, this will be addressed
through the impending Fleet Hire and Maintenance re-tendering process.
Improvements should start to be realised in Q3 2020/21
Resource Implications – None, resources exist within budget
Priority – Medium
Future Targets - No change to current target of 50 missed bins per fortnight per waste stream
Action Plan
Tasks to be undertaken

Completion Date

Intensively monitor performance

Weekly

Page 1398

Establish and implement a process to ensure individual July 2020
team performance is reviewed to establish root causes
Establish performance management dashboard
conjunction with business analyst colleagues

in July 2020

Page 1399

APPENDIX B5

PERFORMANCE PLAN
Indicator

NI192: Percentage of kerbside household waste sent for reuse, recycling and
composting

Reason(s) for not meeting target
The target has not been achieved for Q4 2019/20 for a number of reasons:
• Low participation rates in some areas of the Borough
• An IT issue in May/June 2019 regarding In-Cab software which resulted in continued
collections for those subscribed to the garden waste collection service without resubscription for a period of 4-6 weeks, some residents never re-subscribed after
benefitting from the unplanned 'free of charge' period
• A lack of educational and promotional campaigns to promote recycling within the
Borough.
Additional Commentary and proposed actions
The current performance target is 50% which is a national recycling target for achievement by the
end of 2020. The target increases to 55% by 2025 and 65% by 2035.
Whilst West Lancs are high performers within Lancashire, we are very much mid-table nationally
achieving the position of 155 out of a total of 345 local authorities in the last published results
table in 2018/19.
Our recycling performance for that year was verified at 43.8% which was an improvement on the
2017/18 performance of 42.9% but still a significant distance from the 47.1% achieved in
2016.17. The drop in the recycling achievement following 2016/17 is aligned to the introduction
of the chargeable garden waste collection service.
With the top 8 local authorities of the 345 already achieving above 60% recycling rate and
therefore exceeding the 2025 target, this provides a clear understanding of our current
performance. With the impending implementation of the Environment Bill, there will be a focus
on the introduction of the collection of food waste on a weekly basis, timeframe to be confirmed
but indicative commencement will be 2023.
To achieve these ambitious national targets there will be a requirement for a significant step
change to be considered in terms of waste collection arrangements moving forward.
To address the requirement for education and behavioural change campaigns, a dedicated post
of Waste & Recycling Promotions Officer was created through the SORP process. This has now
been recruited with a proposed start date of 1st July 2020 pending the pre-employment process.
Improvements should start to be realised in Q4 2020/21
Resource Implications – None, resources are within budget
Priority – Medium
Future Targets - Targets for this indicator are set nationally

Page 1400

Action Plan
Tasks to be undertaken

Completion Date

Continue to monitor performance

Monthly

Contact high performing LA's to discuss best practice

July 2020

Identify areas of low recycling participation

September 2020

Develop & deliver promotional campaigns

October 2020 and ongoing

Page 1401

ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS PERFORMANCE PLANS
Indicator

Task
created
following
Q
WL108
Average Q1 19/20
answered
waiting
time for callers to the
contact centre
WL90 % of Contact
Centre calls answered

Tasks to be undertaken

APPENDIX C
Completion Progress
Date

Page 1402

Extend/recruit agency staff

Complete

Effectively plan the roll out of year
4 subscriptions for garden waste

Complete

Use data gathered from the third
year of subscriptions to target all
current subscribers ahead of the
relaunch date with information
about year 4 to actively encourage
them to re-subscribe online.

N/A

Comment/Impact

Agency staff continued to be Outturn for Q4 for WL108 is 74s
reviewed on a weekly basis in seconds (green) and WL90 is 93.4%
response to the needs of the service. (green)
Service launched later than planned
due to COVID19 – DD launch delayed
as a result. Online only service
currently being offered to residents
following
effective
promotion. Service continues to be
monitored for take up/promotion.
This did not happen this year due to
COVID 19, however active promotion
of the service relaunch is in progress.

Performance plans often include actions which, by the time of publication, have already been completed and/or become part of the day to day
ongoing operations of a service. The above table details those actions from Performance Plans in previous quarters that contained a future
implementation date.

Agenda Item 6c
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE:
28 January 2020
CABINET
9 June 2020

Report of:

Head of Finance, Procurement and Commercial Property

Contact for further information: Jacqui Pendleton (Extn. 2603)
(E-mail: Jacqueline.pendleton@westlancs.gov.uk)

SUBJECT:

Anti-money Laundering Policy

Wards affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To set out the results of a review of the Council's Anti-money Laundering Policy.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION TO AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

2.1

That the updated Anti-money Laundering Policy as set out in Appendix 1 to the
report, be endorsed.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION TO CABINET

3.1

That the updated Anti-Money Laundering Policy as set out in Appendix 1 to the
report, be approved.

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The Council's policy for Anti-money Laundering has been reviewed and updated
to take into account the revised regulation "The Money Laundering, Terrorist
Financing and Transfer of Funds (Information on the Payer) Regulations 2017"
that came into force in June 2017. A further update to the regulations will come
into force following the United Kingdom's exit from the European Union and will
place further requirements on certain financial sectors. In general, the Council
does not fall within any of these groups, however, the policy provides that officers
comply with the aims and objectives of the legislation.

4.2

The aim of the Anti-money Laundering Policy is to set out the Council's position
with regards to accepting large cash transactions and the procedure that will be
followed should there be concerns regarding the legitimacy of funds.

Page 1403

4.3

The policy, once approved will be made available to all West Lancashire Borough
Council staff.

5.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

5.1

There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this report and, in
particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder.

6.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no financial implications arising from this report. However, when a
person knows or suspects that money laundering activity is taking place (or has
taken place), or becomes concerned that their involvement in a matter may
amount to a prohibited act under the legislation, they must report this as soon as
practicable to the Money Laundering Responsible Officer (MLRO) or risk
prosecution. Offences under the Proceeds of Crime Act and Money Laundering
Regulations can attract penalties of unlimited fines and up to 14 years
imprisonment.

7.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

7.1

The risk implications in relation to the policy are included within the body of this
report. Risks to the Council of contravening money laundering legislation remain
relatively low and some aspects of the legal and regulatory requirements do not
apply to public authorities. However, it is recognised that the Council is not
completely immune from the risks surrounding money laundering.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.
Equality Impact Assessment
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees,
elected members and / or stakeholders. Therefore no Equality Impact Assessment is
required.
Appendices
1.

Draft Anti-money Laundering Policy.

Page 1404

Anti-Money Laundering Policy

January 2020

Page 1405

Version Control - Key Information:
Title:
Anti-Money Laundering Policy
Document Status:
Draft
Author:
Jacqui Pendleton
Owner:
Internal Audit Manager
Date of publication
31st January 2020
Date of review
31st January 2022

Revision History:
Version
Date
1.0
30/9/2019
1.1
06/01/2020

Summary of Changes
First draft for consultation (JP)
Reviewed by AS – Changes to the Dep MLRO details

Page 2 of 17
Page 1406

Contents
Page

1.

Introduction

4

2.

Scope of the Policy

4

3.

What is Money Laundering?

4-5

4.

What are the Obligations of the Council?

5

5.

The Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO)

5-6

6.

Disclosure Procedure

6-8

7.

Customer Due Diligence

8 - 10

8.

Risk Management & Internal Control

10

9.

Conclusion

10

Appendix A – Report to Money Laundering Reporting Officer

11 - 13

Appendix B– Possible signs of Money Laundering

14 - 15

Page 3 of 17
Page 1407

1.0

INTRODUCTION

1.1

The Proceeds of Crime 2002 Act, the Terrorist Act 2000 and the Money Laundering
Regulations 2007 broadly define money laundering and the range of activities covered by the
statutory framework. Obligations impact on certain areas of local authority business and
require local authorities to establish internal procedures to prevent the use of their services for
money laundering. It is, therefore, good practice to have a robust Policy in place and promote
staff awareness of potential money laundering activity.The Money Laundering, Terrorist
Financing and Transfer of Funds (Information on the Payer) regulations (MLR 2017) came into
force on 26 June 2017. They implement the EU's 4th Directive on Money Laundering. In doing
so, they replace the Money Laundering regulations 2007 (MLR 2007) and the Transfer of
Funds (Information on the Payer) regulations 2007, which were previously in force.

1.2

A key difference in the MLR 2017 is to require “relevant persons” to adopt a more risk-based
approach towards anti-money laundering, in particular in how they conduct due diligence.
Determining the appropriate level of due diligence requires analysis of risk factors based on
the EU Directive and which are set out in MLR 2017.

2.0

SCOPE OF THE POLICY

2.1

This Policy applies to all employees of the Council whether permanent or temporary and
Members of the Council.and It aims to maintain the high standards of conduct which currently
exist within the Council by preventing criminal activity through money laundering. The Policy
sets out the procedures that must be followed (for example the reporting of suspicions of
money laundering activity) to enable the Council and its officers to comply with their legal
obligations.

2.2

Further information is set out in the accompanying Anti-Money Laundering Guidance Note and
Procedures. BothThis Policy sits alongside the Council's Whistleblowing Code and Anti-Fraud,
Bribery and Corruption Policy.

2.3

Failure by a member of staff to comply with the procedures set out in this Policy may result in
disciplinary action. Any disciplinary action will be dealt with in accordance with the Council's
Disciplinary Policy Policies and Procedures. It should also be noted that in certain instances
officers might themselves become criminally liable for breach of the 2000 Act, 2002 Act and
the 2007 Regulationsthe MLR 2017.

3.0

WHAT IS MONEY LAUNDERING?

3.1

Money Laundering is defined as the integrating of “dirty money’’ (i.e. the proceeds of crime)
into the mainstream economy. The objective of which is to legitimise the possession of such
monies through circulation and this effectively leads to “clean’’ funds being received in
exchange. Money laundering often involves three steps:




3.2

Placement – cash is introduced into the financial system by some means;
Layering – a financial transaction to camouflage the illegal source;
Integration – acquisition of financial wealth from the transaction of the illicit funds.

Money laundering is also the term used for a number of offences involving the proceeds of
crime or terrorism funds. The following are primary money laundering offences defined under
the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA 2002) and are thus prohibited acts under the law:

Page 4 of 17
Page 1408

3.3



concealing, disguising, converting, transferring criminal property or removing it from the
UK; or



entering into or becoming concerned in an arrangement which you know or suspect
facilitates the acquisition, retention, use or control of criminal property by or on behalf of
another person; or



acquiring, using or possessing criminal property.

There are also two secondary offences and thus prohibited acts under the legislation:



Failure to disclose any of the primary offences and:
Tipping off - where someone informs a person or people who are, or are suspected of
being involved in money laundering, in such a way as to reduce the likelihood of them
being investigated or prejudicing an investigation.

These are the primary money laundering offences and thus prohibited acts under the law:
concealing, disguising, converting, transferring criminal property or removing it from the UK; or
entering into or becoming concerned in an arrangement which you know or suspect facilitates the
acquisition, retention, use or control of criminal property by or on behalf of another person; or
acquiring, using or possessing criminal property; or
becoming concerned in an arrangement facilitating concealment, removal from the jurisdiction,
transfer to nominees or any other retention or control of terrorist property.
3.24

The broad definition of money laundering means that Ppotentially any member of staff could
be caught by the money laundering provisions if they suspect money laundering and either
become involved with it in some way and/or do nothing about it. The Guidance Note and
Procedures document gives practical examples. This Policy sets out how any concerns should
be raised.

4.0

WHAT ARE THE OBLIGATIONS ON OF THE COUNCIL?

4.0

The law requires those organisations in the „regulated sector‟ and conducting „relevant
business‟ to

•

appoint a Money Laundering Reporting Officer (“MLRO”) to receive disclosures from
employees of money laundering activity (their own or anyone else's);

•


implement a procedure to enable the reporting of suspicions of money laundering;

maintain client identification and record keeping procedures.
4.12 Whilst Local Authorities are not directly covered by the requirements of the Money Laundering
Regulations 2017 (MLR 2017), guidance from finance and legal professions, including the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA), indicates that public service
organisations should comply with the underlying spirit of the legislation and regulations and
put in place appropriate and proportionate anti-money laundering safeguards and reporting
arrangements.

Page 5 of 17
Page 1409

4.23

The Regulations MLR 2017 apply to “relevant persons” acting in the course of business carried
onut by them in the UK. Not all of the Council’s business is “relevant” for the purposes of the
legislation. It is mainly accountancy and financial, company and property transactions.
However, the safest way to ensure compliance with the law is to apply them to all areas of
work undertaken by the Council.; therefore, all employees are required to comply with the
reporting procedure set out in the policy.

It is considered that the Council does not fall within the regulated sector nor does it conduct relevant
business. However it is good practice, and will aid the Council‟s compliance with the wider
requirements of the relevant legislation if it adopts policies and procedures which are in line
with the requirements identified in the bullet points above.
4.34

The law requires those organisations in the "regulated sector" and conducting "relevant
business" toobligations on the Council are to establish and maintain appropriate and risk
sensitive policies and procedures. Therefore the council must:






4.4

appoint a Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO) to receive disclosures from
employees of money laundering activity (their own or anyone else's);
implement a procedure to enable the reporting of suspicions of money laundering;
maintain client identification and record keeping procedures;
maintain record keeping procedures; and
conduct money laundering and terrorist funding risk assessment and adopt appropriate
controls.

All staffemployees are required to comply with the reporting procedures set out in section 6
below to ensure consistency throughout the organisation Council and and avoid inadvertent
offences being committedproper discharge of its obligations under the money laundering
regime.

The following sections of this Policy provide further detail about the requirements listed in paragraph
4.1 to the extent that they are relevant to the Council.
5.0

THE MONEY LAUNDERING REPORTING OFFICER (MLRO)

5.1

The officer nominated to receive disclosures about money laundering activity within the
Council is the MLRO, who can be contacted as follows:
Jacqui Pendleton
Internal Audit Manager
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
L39 2DF
Email: Jacqueline.pendleton@westlancs.gov.uk
Telephone: 01695 712603

5.2

In the absence of the MLRO, any suspicion of money laundering should be reported to the
Deputy MLRO:
Adam Spicer,

Page 6 of 17
Page 1410

Assistant Solicitor
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
L39 2DF
Email: Adam.Spicer@westlancs.gov.uk
Telephone: 01695 585042
The officer nominated to receive disclosures about money laundering activity within the
Council is the Internal Audit Manager, Mike Coysh (MLRO) (i). He can be contacted as follows:
Mike Coysh
Internal Audit Manager
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
L39 2DF
Telephone: 01695 712603 (internal 2603)

6.0

5.2
In the absence of the MLRO, the Assistant Solicitor, Michael Hynes, is authorised to
deputise for him. He can be contacted at the 52 Derby Street offices address or on extension
5522.
DISCLOSURE PROCEDURE
Reporting to the Money Laundering Reporting Officer

6.1

Where you know or suspect that money laundering activity is taking/has taken place, or
become concerned that your involvement in a matter may amount to a prohibited act under
the legislation, you must disclose this as soon as practicable to the MLRO. The disclosure
should be within “hours” of the information coming to your attention, not weeks or months later.

6.2

Your disclosure should be made to the MLRO using the proforma report set out in the
Guidance Notes and ProceduresAppendix A. The report must include as much detail as
possible, for example:

• As much detail as known about the people involved, e.g. name, date of birth, address,
company names, directorships, phone numbers, etc.;

• Full details of the nature of their/your involvement;
 If you are concerned that your involvement in the transaction would amount to a
prohibited act under the POCA 2002, then your report must include all relevant
details, as you will need consent from the National Crime Agency (NCA), via the
MLRO, to take any further part in the transaction - this is the case even if the client
gives instructions for the matter to proceed before such consent is given.
 You should therefore make it clear in the report if such consent is required and clarify
whether there are any deadlines for giving such consent, e.g. a completion date or
court deadline;

•

The types of money laundering activity involved:
 if possible, cite the section number(s) under which the report is being made;

•

The dates of such activities, including:

Page 7 of 17
Page 1411







•

Whether the transactions have happened, are ongoing or are imminent;
Where they took place;
How they were undertaken;
The (likely) amount of money/assets involved;
Why, exactly, you are suspicious – NCA will require full reasons;

along with Aany other available information to enable the MLRO to make a sound
judgement as to whether there are reasonable grounds for knowledge or suspicion of
money laundering and to enable him to prepare his reportthe preparation of a report to
NCA, where appropriate. You should also enclose copies of any relevant supporting
documentation.

6.3

Once you have reported the matter to the MLRO you must follow any directions he may given
to you. You must NOT make any further enquiries into the matter yourself: any necessary
investigation will be undertaken by NCA. Simply report your suspicions to the MLRO who will
refer the matter on to NCA if appropriate. All members of staff will be required to co-operate
with the MLRO and the authorities during any subsequent money laundering investigation.

6.4

Similarly, at no time and under no circumstances should you voice any suspicions to the
person(s) whom you suspect of money laundering, even if NCA has given consent to a
particular transaction proceeding, without the specific consent of the MLRO. Even saying "I
can't tell you" may infer "tip off". Advice may be sought from the MLRO if any uncertainty
remains regarding how to proceed in such a situation. If and when the MLRO and/or the NCA
give clearance individuals must proceed with the matter as if nothing had happened.

6.5

The MLR 2017 created a new criminal offence in that any person who recklessly makes a
statement in the context of money laundering which is false or misleading commits an offence.
Punishment is a fine and/or up to 2 years' imprisonment.

6.6
Do not, therefore, make any reference on a client file to a report having been made to the
MLRO – should the client exercise their right to see the file, then such a note will obviously
tip them off to the report having been made. The MLRO will keep the appropriate records in a
confidential manner.
Consideration of the disclosure by the Money Laundering Reporting Officer
6.76

Upon receipt of a disclosure report, the MLRO must note the date of receipt on his section of
the report and formally acknowledge receipt of it. He should alsoThe MLRO will advise you of
the timescale within which he expects to respond to you a response should be expected..

6.87

The MLRO will consider the report and any other available internal information he
thinksdeemed relevant e.g.:

•
•
•
•

reviewing other transaction patterns and volumes;
the length of any business relationship involved;
the number of any one-off transactions and linked one-off transactions;
any identification evidence held;

and undertake such other reasonable enquiries he thinksas appropriate in order to ensure that
all available information is taken into account in deciding whether a report to NCA is required
(such enquiries being made in such a way as to avoid any appearance of tipping off those
involved). The MLRO may also need to discuss the report with you.

Page 8 of 17
Page 1412

6.98

Once tThe MLRO has must evaluated the disclosure report and any other relevant information,
he mustand make a timely determination as to whether:

•
•
•

there is actual or suspected money laundering taking place; or
there are reasonable grounds to know or suspect that is the case; and
whether he consent from NCAneeds to seek consent from NCA for a particular
transaction to proceed is required.

6.109 Where the MLRO does so conclude, then he must disclose the matter as soon as practicable
must be disclosed to the NCA on their standard report form and in the prescribed manner,
unless he hasthe MLRO has a reasonable excuse for non-disclosure to NCA (for example, if
you are a lawyer and you wish to claim legal professional privilege for not disclosing the
information).
6.110 Where the MLRO suspects money laundering but has a reasonable excuse for non-disclosure,
then he must note the report accordinglythen the report should be marked accordingly; he the
MLRO can then immediately give his consent for any ongoing or imminent transactions to
proceed.
6.121 In cases where legal professional privilege may apply, the MLRO must liaise with the legal
adviser to decide whether there is a reasonable excuse for not reporting the matter to NCA.
6.123 Where consent is required from the NCA for a transaction to proceed, then the transaction(s)
in question must not be undertaken or completed until NCA has specifically given consent, or
there is deemed consent through the expiration of the relevant time limits without objection
from NCA.
6.134 Where the MLRO concludes that there are no reasonable grounds to suspect money
laundering then he shall mark the report accordinglythe report will be marked accordingly and
consent given for and give his consent for any ongoing or imminent transaction(s) to proceed.
6.145 All disclosure reports referred to the MLRO and reports made by him to the NCA must be
retained by the MLRO in a confidential file kept for that purpose, for a minimum of five years.
6.16

The MLRO or deputy will commit a criminal offence if they know, suspect or have reasonable
grounds to do so, through a disclosure being made to them, that another person is engaged
in money laundering and they do not disclose this as soon as possible to the NCA.

7.0

CUSTOMER DUE DILIGENCE

7.1

Where the Council is carrying out certain regulated business (accountancy, audit and tax
services and legal services regarding financial, company or property transactions) and as part
of this,

a)
b)

forms an ongoing business relationship with a customer; or
undertakes a one-off or occasional transaction amounting to €15,000 (£13,330
approx) or more whether carried out as a single transaction or several linked ones; or

Page 9 of 17
Page 1413

c)

suspects money laundering or terrorist financing,

then the Customer Due Diligence procedure must be followed before any business is
undertaken for that customer.
7.2

Customer due diligence means:
identifying the customer and verifying the customer’s identity based on information
obtained from a reliable and independent source (e.g. conducting a search at
Companies House);
•
obtaining information on the purpose and intended nature of the business relationship.

•

7.3

Customer due diligence is set out quite clearly in the link below and relates to all customers:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/money-laundering-regulations-your-responsibilities

7.4

The requirement for customer due diligence applies immediately for new customers and
should be considered on a risk sensitive basis for existing customers. Customer due diligence
means that the Council must know its clients and understand their businesses. This is so that
the Council can know if there is suspicious activity that should be reported; clearly it is only
by the Council knowing its cusotmers and their businesses that it can recognise abnormal
and possibly suspicious activity.

7.5

MLR 2017 requires that the Council identifies its customers and verifies that identity on the
basis of documents, data or information obtained from a reliable source. Where there is a
beneficial owner who is not a customer then the Council must identify that person and verify
the identity and where the beneficial owner is a trust or similar then the Council must
understand the nature of the control structure of that trust. Finally, the Council must obtain
information on the purpose and intended nature of the business relationship. The MLR 2017
introduces the need for the Council to consider both customer and geographical risk factors
in deciding what due diligence is appropriate.

7.6

The checks described in the paragraph above must generally be undertaken by the Council
before it establishes a business relationship or carries out an occasional transaction, or if it
suspects money laundering or terrorist funding or doubts the veracity of any information
obtained for the purposes of identification or verification. However, the Council is not required
to undertake these checks if its customer is another public authority, unless it suspects money
laundering or terrorist funding.

7.7

The Council is also obliged to maintain ongoing monitoring of its business relationships which
means it must scrutinise transactions throughout the course of the relationship to ensure that
the transactions are consistent with the Council’s knowledge of the customer and keep the
information about the customer up-to-date.
Simplified Due Diligence

7.8

Simplified Due Diligence is the lowest level of due diligence that can be completed on a
customer. This is appropriate where there is little opportunity or risk of your services or
customer becoming involved in money laundering or terrorist financing.

7.9

Where a customer is considered to be low risk (occupation; organisation; country; method of
transacting; transaction value etc.) then Simplified Due Diligence can be completed. Identity

Page 10 of 17
Page 1414

must still be confirmed but the ongoing requirements may be relaxed unless a change in
circumstances occurs.
Enhanced Customer Due Diligence and Ongoing Monitoring
7.10

It will, in certain circumstances, be necessary to undertake what is known in the regulations
as Enhanced Customer Due Diligence. In summary, this will be necessary where:
•
the customer has not been physically present for identification purposes; or
•
in any other situation which, by its nature, can present a higher risk of money
laundering or terrorist funding.

7.11

Where this applies, the Council will need to take adequate measures to compensate for the
higher risk. For example, this will mean ensuring that the customer’s identity is established
by additional documents, data or information.

7.12

Similarly, where the Council is in an ongoing “business relationship” with a customer, the
Regulations impose a special obligation to carry out ongoing monitoring. This means that the
Council must: scrutinise transactions undertaken throughout the course of the relationship to
make sure that these transactions are consistent with the Council’s knowledge of the
customer, his / her business and risk profile; and keep documents, data or information
obtained for the purpose of applying Customer Due Diligence measures up-to-date.

Possible Signs of Money Laundering
7.13

There are many indicators that alert us to conduct further enquiries to establish certain facts.
The answers (or failure to answer) will either dispel the original suspicion that something may
not be quite right or reinforce that suspicion or highlight new areas for investigation. Appendix
B gives examples of possible signs of money laundering, this list is not exhaustive.
Record Keeping

7.14

Employees who carry out due diligence checks must retain the identification evidence and
details of the relevant transaction for that client for at least five years.

8.0

RISK MANAGEMENT & INTERNAL CONTROL

8.1

The risk to the Council of contravening the anti-money laundering legislation will be assessed
on a periodic basis and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Anti-Money Laundering Policy
will be reviewed in light of such assessments.

8.2

The adequacy and effectiveness of, promotion of, and compliance by employees with, the
documentation and procedures will also be monitored through the Council’s Corporate
Governance and Anti-Fraud Policy frameworks.

Page 11 of 17
Page 1415

CLIENT IDENTIFICATION PROCEDURE
7.1

The client identification procedure – putting in place formal procedures for evidencing
the identity of those they do business with under the 2007 regulations - is only
required, under the regulations, by those engaging in specific areas of Council
activity. It is essential, however, for all staff to ensure they are constantly alert to
potentially suspicious circumstances, for example, situations where funds flow
through the Council from a source with which it is unfamiliar.

7.2

In particular, if the Council is forming a new business relationship, and/or is
considering undertaking a significant one-off transaction, officers must ensure that
their own service procedures satisfy the requirements of the Client Identification
Procedure before any business is undertaken for that client. This will be especially
true if the parties concerned are not physically present for identification purposes and
to situations where they may be acting for absent third parties. Satisfactory evidence
of the identity of the prospective client should be obtained beforehand. For advice on
appropriate and acceptable identification documents and any record keeping
requirements, contact the MLRO.

9.0

CONCLUSION

9.1

The legislative requirements concerning anti-money laundering procedures are lengthy and
complex. This Policy has been written so as to enable the Council to meet the legal
requirements in a way which is proportionate to the very low risk to the Council of contravening
the legislation.

9.2

Should you have any concerns whatsoever regarding any transactions then you should
contact the MLRO or Deputy MLRO immediately.

Page 12 of 17
Page 1416

APPENDIX A

WEST LANCASHIRE BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRICTLY PRIVATE &CONFIDENTIAL
Report to Money Laundering Reporting Officer
Please do not discuss the content of this report with anyone you believe to be involved in the
suspected money laundering activity described. To do so may constitute a tipping off offence
which carried a maximum penalty of 5 years imprisonment.
Employee Details:
Name
Job Title
Service/Department
Telephone Number
Email Address
Details of Suspected Office
Names and addresses of the
persons involved (if a
company, please include the
nature of their business)

Nature, value and timing of
activity involved: (please
include full details e.g. what,
when, where, how)

Nature of Suspicions:

Page 13 of 17
Page 1417

Has any investigation been
undertaken (as far as you are
aware)?
If yes, please include details
below:
Have you discussed your
suspicions with anyone else?
If Yes, please specify,
explaining why such
discussion was necessary:
Have you consulted any
supervisory body for
guidance regarding money
laundering? (e.g. The Law
Society). If yes, please
provide further details
Please set out below any
other information that you
feel is relevant:

YES ☐

NO ☐

YES ☐

NO ☐

YES ☐

NO ☐

Signed and dated (type name
and date for electronic
submissions)
FOR COMPLETION BY THE MLRO
Date Received and
acknowledged:
Are their reasonable grounds
for suspecting money
laundering?

YES ☐

NO ☐

If yes, please provide details
and confirm date of report to
National Crime Agency
(NCA).

If there are reasonable
grounds to suspect money
laundering, but you do not
intend to report the matter to
the NCA, please provide the
reason(s) for non-disclosure.
Unique NCA case reference
number:

Page 14 of 17
Page 1418

Date consent given to
employee for transaction to
proceed (if applicable)
Other relevant information:

Signed and Dated

THIS REPORT TO BE RETAINED FOR AT LEAST FIVE YEARS

Page 15 of 17
Page 1419

APPENDIX B
POSSIBLE SIGNS OF MONEY LAUNDERING
It is impossible to give a definitive list of ways in which to spot money laundering or how to decide
whether to make a report to the MLRO. The following are types of risk factors which may, either
alone or cumulatively with other factors, suggest the possibility of money laundering activity:
GENERAL

•

A new client;

•

A secretive client: e.g., refuses to provide requested information without a reasonable
explanation;

•

Concerns about the honesty, integrity, identity or location of a client;

•

Illogical third party transactions: unnecessary routing or receipt of funds from third parties
or through third party accounts;

•

Involvement of an unconnected third party without logical reason or explanation;

•

Payment of a substantial sum in cash (e.g. over £10,000);

•

Overpayments by a client;

•

Absence of an obvious legitimate source of the funds;

•

Movement of funds overseas, particularly to a higher risk country or tax haven;

•

Where, without reasonable explanation, the size, nature and frequency of transactions or
instructions (or the size, location or type of a client) is out of line with normal expectations;

•
•

A transaction without obvious legitimate purpose or which appears uneconomic, inefficient
or irrational;
The cancellation or reversal of an earlier transaction;

•

Requests for release of client account details other than in the normal course of business;

•

Companies and trusts: extensive use of corporate structures and trusts in circumstances
where the client’s needs are inconsistent with the use of such structures;

•

Poor business records or internal accounting controls;

•

A previous transaction for the same client which has been, or should have been, reported
to the MLRO;

PROPERTY MATTERS

•

Unusual property investment transactions if there is no apparent investment purpose or
rationale;

•

Instructions to receive and pay out money where there is no linked substantive property
transaction involved (surrogate banking);

•

Property transactions, funds received for deposits or prior to completion from an
unexpected source or where instructions are given for settlement funds to be paid to an
unexpected destination;

Facts which tend to suggest that something odd is happening may be sufficient for a reasonable
suspicion of money laundering to arise.

Page 16 of 17
Page 1420

In short, the money laundering offences apply to your own actions and to matters in which you
become involved. If you become aware that your involvement in a matter may amount to money
laundering under POCA 2002 then you must discuss it with the MLRO and not take any further
action until you have received, through the MLRO, the consent of NCA. The failure to report
money laundering obligations relate also to your knowledge or suspicions of others, through your
work.

Page 17 of 17
Page 1421

Agenda Item 8a

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 1423

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 1433

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 1471

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 1475

